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Letter of Transmittal



February 20, 2020
To the Honorable Mayor, City Council, and City Manager:

It is my pleasure to present the City of San Antonio’s (City) Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) and
Other Reports for the fiscal year-ended September 30, 2019. These financial statements were prepared by the
City’s Finance Department and audited by the public accounting firm of Grant Thornton LLP. As reflected in the
Independent Auditor’s Report, the City’s financial statements are presented fairly in all material respects in
accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in the United States. Responsibility for both
the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all
disclosures, rests with the management of the City.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), beginning on page one, provides a narrative introduction,
overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. This transmittal letter complements the MD&A and
should be read in conjunction with it.

CITY PROFILE

The City provides a vast array of municipal services. The full range of services provided to its constituents
includes ongoing programs to provide health, welfare, education, sanitation, cultural, and recreational services;
maintenance and construction of streets and drainage; public safety through police and fire protection; and
urban redevelopment and affordable housing. The City also considers the promotion of convention and tourism
and participation in economic development programs as high priorities. The funding sources from which these
services are provided include ad valorem, sales and use, and hotel occupancy tax receipts; revenue payments
from the City’s municipally-owned utilities; grants; user fees; debt proceeds; tax increment financing; and other
sources.

The City has 27 component units that are considered part of the City’s operations and, therefore, included in its
annual financial statements. Fourteen of these entities are blended component units of the City; two entities are
fiduciary, while the remaining 11 entities are discretely presented. Based on the size and significance of four
component units (CPS Energy, San Antonio Water System, San Antonio Fire and Police Pension Fund, and San
Antonio Fire and Police Retiree Health Care Fund), the City has included excerpts of these entities’ footnotes
within the CAFR. For additional details on all of the City’s component units and the basis for their respective
presentation in our financial report, please refer to the Financial Section, Note 1 Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies.

The City is a home rule city that was incorporated in 1837 and chartered in 1951. The City Charter provides for a
Council-Manager form of government, subject only to the limitations imposed by the Texas Constitution and the
City Charter. All powers of the City are vested in an elective Council (the City Council), which enacts legislation,
adopts budgets, and determines policy. The City Council is comprised of 11 members, with ten members elected
from single-member districts, and the Mayor elected at-large. The term of the office of the Mayor or a member
of the City Council is limited to four full two-year terms. The City Council also appoints a City Manager who
executes the laws and administers the government of the City and serves as the City’s Chief Executive Officer.



CITY PROFILE (Continued)

On January 31, 2019, the Mayor and City Council appointed Erik Walsh as the new City
Manager effective March 1, 2019. Erik Walsh, a native of San Antonio, has 24 years of
municipal government experience with the City. Prior to his appointment, Mr. Walsh
was promoted in 2011 to serve as a Deputy City Manager where he oversaw the Police
and Fire departments, Metropolitan Health District, Office of Emergency Management
and 311/Customer Service Center. Prior to that, Mr. Walsh was an Assistant City
Manager handling the Development Services, Animal Care Services and Solid Waste
Management departments in addition to the City’s budget and intergovernmental
relations functions. Mr. Walsh’s 24-year career with the City includes extensive
operations management, organizational development, budget, fiscal policy and contract
management experience.

The City is located in South Central Texas, approximately 75 miles south of the state capital of Austin, and

P serves as the county seat for Bexar County. San Antonians
enjoy first-rate medical services, a convenient and efficient
airport, an excellent highway system, mild weather, and superb
recreation choices, including: championship golf courses, 69
miles of linear greenway trails, theme parks, historical
attractions, museums, professional sporting attractions, and a
lively performing arts environment. Geographically, the City of
San Antonio covers more than 507 square miles and is located
in Bexar County in south central Texas, one of the fastest
growing regions in the state. The United States Census Bureau
cites the City as the second most populated city in the State of
Texas with over 1.5 million citizens and is additionally ranked as
the seventh most populated city in the country. Since 2010, the
City’s metropolitan area grew 15.0% and is projected to grow
by an additional 1.0 million people through the year 2040.

Major employers in and around the San Antonio area include the Department of Defense through Joint Base San
Antonio (Lackland, Fort Sam & Randolph), H.E.B. Food Stores, United Services Automobile Association, City of
San Antonio, Methodist Healthcare System, Northside, North East, and San Antonio Independent School
Districts, Baptist Health Systems, and JP Morgan Chase.

ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK

San Antonio is anchored by several key industries and is targeting other emerging industries to drive the City's
economic future: The healthcare and bioscience fields have an annual economic impact of over $37.0 billion
and employ more than 172,000 citizens, making San Antonio a leading research and treatment center for
cancer, diabetes, heart disease, and other conditions. The military has played a major role in San Antonio’s
history and economy. With an estimated economic impact of $48.7 billion, San Antonio’s military installations
directly employ 64,967 military personnel and serve as the largest single employer in the City. Expanding across
more than 46,000 acres in the Alamo region, San Antonio’s bases are a major hub for medical training, flight
training, cyber operations, surveillance, and military intelligence. As a community, San Antonio has positioned
itself for long-term growth and prosperity by implementing a strategy to diversify its economy and improve
quality of life for all citizens. The economic strategy bolstered by the City’s innovative growth and development
plan, the SA Tomorrow Comprehensive Plan, serves as the City’s roadmap towards smart, substantial growth.
The City’s SA Tomorrow goals leverage San Antonio’s unique assets, including its historical and cultural
heritage, formidable local institutions (e.g. military bases, universities, and medical center), unique
partnerships, and natural resources.



ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

San Antonio is a great place to live. Its cost of living is typically 10% to 15% below the national average and is
consistently ranked among the lowest of major U.S. cities, while home prices are among the most affordable in
the country. San Antonio’s housing market has remained strong in 2019 as single-family home prices have
continued to increase. According to the Multiple Listing Service Report from the San Antonio Board of Realtors
(SABOR), the average sales price of a home in San Antonio is $270,147 and the median of $237,200.

Cybersecurity is of particular importance to the City due to the strong connections the industry has with military
and federal operations in San Antonio. The industry itself is both large and diverse, with over 1,000 IT companies
in and around San Antonio. Additionally, San Antonio is 2nd in the nation for information assurance, and is home
to the headquarters for the 24™ Air Force, the Air Force Cyber Command, and the Air Education and Personnel
Command.

In 2019, the Airport continued to experience growth in the number of passengers. Overall passenger growth
increased by 6.0% over 2018 resulting in 2019 having a record year eclipsing 10 million total passengers. This
growth reflects an ongoing trend of progress at the Airport and its focus on air service and customer experience.
The Airport continues to work with the business community to attract and grow air service.

MAIJOR INITIATIVES — CAPITAL PROGRAMS

City Hall Renovations In the summer of 2018, City Council
approved renovation of City Hall. The facility was built in
1889 and has not undergone renovations since 1927 when
the fourth floor addition was constructed. An assessment
of the building confirmed the need for mechanical,
electrical, plumbing, and elevator system repairs and
replacements. Renovations to the 44,500 square foot
facility include improved office spaces, new meeting
rooms and restrooms, new elevators, and a new ADA
accessible ramp on the east side entrance. The renovation
is expected to be complete by May 2020. Upon
completion City Hall will house the City Manager, Mayor,
and City Council.

City Tower The City purchased the downtown Frost Tower building in 2016 as part of the City’s broader effort to
redevelop downtown San Antonio. The project will consolidate 22 city departments, approximately 1,500
personnel, including the City Attorney and City Clerk, previously in City Hall, into one building. The acquisition,
construction, renovation, and operation of City Tower will be budget neutral while providing a more efficient
and synergistic service to City staff and customers. City staff will occupy 13 of the 21 floors to include the
concourse and street levels. The remaining floors will be utilized as leased office and retail space. Street level
upgrades include retail space, lobby, and staff offices with the concourse level to include a conference center,
gym, wellness clinic, new restrooms/showers, HR training center and an IT service desk. Design is expected to be
complete in April 2020, with concurrent construction starting in January 2020 and substantial completion
projected for July 2021. City Personnel will begin moving into the new building starting in 2020.



MAIJOR INITIATIVES — CAPITAL PROGRAMS (Continued)

Frost Tower Construction of the Frost Tower kicked off in March
2017 and continued throughout the duration of fiscal year 2018.
The tower’s largest tenant, Frost Bank, moved in the summer of
2019 occupying 15 floors, while additional tenants occupy the
remaining eight floors. Along the ground floor of the tower,
restaurants and other businesses will keep the space active from
morning into the evening. Additionally across the street, Weston
Urban is adding a park that will bring much needed green space
downtown. The 460,000 square foot building will forever change
downtown San Antonio’s skyline with the construction of the first
new office tower downtown since 1989.

Robert L.B. Tobin Land Bridge Phil Hardberger Park is a 311 acre City
park that is divided by Wurzbach Parkway. The Robert L.B. Tobin Land
Bridge is under construction to connect the east and west sides of the
park in order to create a cohesive natural area and protect the wildlife
living in the park. The land bridge will be ADA accessible and will
feature an elevated walkway that gently climbs through the tree tops
to the top of the bridge. The additional features will be shared by both
humans and animals—the only bridge in the world designed to
accommodate both. The Robert L.B. Tobin Land Bridge is estimated to
be completed in August 2020.

MAIJOR INITIATIVES — COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIPS

Alameda Theater The City, in partnership with Bexar County, Texas Public Radio
(TPR) and La Familia Cortez created a conceptual plan to restore and reopen the
historic Alameda Theater as a multi-media live performing arts and film center
featuring the American Latino-Multicultural story. TPR will relocate its
headquarters to the newly constructed stage house behind the theater and
construct a new black box theater within the TPR facility. The renovation and
restoration of the entire complex is expected to be completed in 2021. The
project is funded by the City, County, and TPR. The City and County will
provide $9 million each for the capital project through the Houston Street Tax
Increment Reinvestment Zone and TPR will provide $5 million. Alameda
Theater Conservancy is committed to covering additional construction costs
through fundraising efforts.

San Antonio Tourism Public Improvement District Visit San Antonio (VSA) and the San Antonio Hotel and
Lodging Association (SAHLA), an association group representing the hospitality industry in San Antonio, worked
to establish the San Antonio Tourism Public Improvement District (SATPID) which added a 1.25% fee per night
hotel stay, effective January 1, 2019, to be reinvested into marketing San Antonio. The funds, collected by the
City but managed by VSA, will be used for funding the sales, marketing, and promotion of San Antonio to
convention, group, business and leisure visitors. The eight-year agreement with VSA is expected to raise more
than $10.0 million annually.
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MAIJOR INITIATIVES — COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIPS (Continued)

Alamo Master Plan In 2018, the City’s Mayor, Ron Nirenberg, joined
Texas Land Commissioner George P. Bush in supporting a plan to
redesign the City’s Alamo Plaza. The major elements of the design
include restoration of the church and long barrack, delineation of
the historic footprint, building a world-class visitor center and
museum, and enhancing connectivity to and from the site. Alamo
Plaza will triple in size and be a world-class site that pays proper
respect to the fallen, tells the story of the Battle of the Alamo, and
remains a public space for all those who come from around the
world to visit. The $450.0 million renovation will be funded by a
$38.0 million contribution from the City, $106.5 million contribution
from the State of Texas, with the Alamo Endowment committing to
raising private funds for the remainder. The renovations are set to
begin in fiscal year 2020 and are expected to be complete by fiscal
year 2024.

Migrant Resource Center The City joined other cities and nonprofits throughout Texas and across the country in
stepping up and serving those in most need during the 2019 migrant influx. Working as a team, the City and its
nonprofit partners went above and beyond in assisting migrants. In 2019 the City opened the Migrant Resource
Center, in close coordination with the San Antonio Food Bank, Interfaith Welcome Coalition, Travis Park Church,
Catholic Charities and other nonprofits and community volunteers. The Migrant Resource Center saw over
32,000 migrants come through its doors; served 85,507 meals; Travis Park Church slept 22,367 migrants
overnight, and 2,842 individuals received medical attention. About 1,200 City employees and 600 community
members volunteered at the center in that time span to run operations at the center. The San Antonio Food
Bank provided three hot meals daily, plus snacks and donation coordination. Travis Park Church provided
evening shelter to families who remained overnight in San Antonio, and Catholic Charities served as the lead
partner for travel arrangements. Together with partners, the center provided basic needs and travel planning
assistance so that migrants can safely arrive at their designated locations across the country.

MAIJOR INITIATIVES — CONVENTION AND TOURISM

The continued success of the City’s vibrant hospitality industry depends significantly on its inventory of high-

quality facilities to host conventions, meetings, and major sporting events. The Convention & Sports Facilities

Department (CSF) operates the Henry B. Gonzalez Convention Center and Lila Cockrell Theatre, the Alamodome,
and the Carver Community Cultural Center. In 2019, the City
hosted over 720 events with more than 1.8 million attendees
between all CSF facilities.

Henry B. Gonzalez Convention Center Significant conventions at
the Henry B. Gonzalez Convention Center included Future Business
Leaders of America, American Society for Therapeutic Radiology &
Oncology, ReedPOP/Pax South, Texas Computer Education
Association, and Texas Music Educators Association. Since the
Convention Center expansion in 2016, total revenues have
increased by 27.0 % from $16.1 million in 2016 to $20.5 million in
2019.



MAIJOR INITIATIVES — CONVENTION AND TOURISM (Continued)

Alamodome The Alamodome has seen extensive growth during the same time frame reporting a 28% increase
in revenues from $9.9 million in 2016 to $12.7 million in 2019. As a multi-purpose sports and general assembly
facility, the Alamodome hosted many varied events in 2019, including an international soccer event between the
national teams of Mexico and Argentina with over 50,000 in attendance. In December 2018, the Valero Alamo
Bowl featured lowa State verses Washington State with over 60,000 people in attendance resulting in a $31.2
million direct economic impact for the City.

In order to extend the life of the facilities and maintain competitiveness, CSF completed a building assessment in
2019 of the Convention Center and Alamodome and is developing a long-term capital replacement plan.
Upcoming capital improvements include the replacement of about 400,000 square feet of the 1998 Convention
Center roof as well as the replacement of the retractable seating and the replacement of the elevators and
escalators at the Alamodome. In addition, as part of the City’s commitment to prepare for the 2025 Men’s Final
Four, the City will build 18 additional suites for a total of 70, and upgrade the finishes on the upper concourse in
the stadium to match the finishes on the plaza level.

MAJOR INITIATIVES — CULTURE AND ART
The Department of Arts & Culture supports City based artists to ensure our local creative industry remains

diverse and thriving. In 2019, the City paid $287,000 directly to more than 60 local designers and artists for the
creation, acquisition, exhibition, and performance of new works for the residents and visitors of San Antonio.

Tribute to Freedom In March 2019, the City celebrated the completion of

/ phase one of the Lackland Corridor Gateway Project with the dedication of
i, the Tribute to Freedom sculpture at the corner of U.S. Highway 90 and Military

Drive. The 75 foot sculpture, designed by San Antonio artist George Schroeder,
commemorates the five branches of the United States Armed Forces.

Art Support Services Bloom by San Antonio artist Leticia Huerta, located in
McAllister Park, is a series of larger-than-life wildflowers created from bicycle
parts and inspired by the native flowers found nearby. These public art pieces,
and many others, were created for our community to express the vibrancy and
diversity of San Antonio through art, while also recognizing the many
influences that continue to shape who we are as a city. The public art process
invites public participation to impact the artistic landscape of our
community. The City’s Open Call for Public Artists and Art Support Services
saw more than 200 local applicants pre-qualified for future public art projects, thereby continuing to grow the
local creative economy of San Antonio, which improves the quality of life for artists, residents, and San Antonio
visitors. To celebrate the strong history of public art in San Antonio, the Department published a coloring book
which highlights art across every City Council district.

MAIJOR INITIATIVES — EDUCATION

Pre-K 4 SA In November 2012, City voters approved funding for Pre-K 4 SA with an eighth-of-a-cent sales tax
that finances the majority of the early childhood education organization’s budget. Pre-K 4 SA is a comprehensive
initiative designed to change San Antonio’s education and workforce trajectory in one generation through high-
quality early education. By the end of its initial eight-year authorization, Pre-K 4 SA will have directly served
14,000 children and their families in their four education centers and over 13,000 students via competitive
grants. Pre-K 4 SA will have also provided professional learning to over 21,000 early childhood educators across
San Antonio. Pre-K 4 SA achieves its mission through four key program components: 1) four model Education
Centers; 2) best-in-class professional learning; 3) family outreach and engagement; and 4) competitive grants. In
May 2020, City voters will consider reauthorization of the organization’s 1/8 cent sales tax funding stream.
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MAIJOR INITIATIVES — EDUCATION (Continued)

Fine Free Pilot Program The San Antonio Public Library has a robust collection of eBooks, eAudiobooks and
eMagazines that can be checked out without visiting a library location. This fiscal year, the Library reached a
milestone of 8 million checkouts, the highest circulation number for any single year in its history. The Library
launched the Fine Free Pilot Program in the summer of 2019 allowing any items classified “juvenile” or “young
adult” to be free from fines throughout the pilot period in order for families to enjoy the library regardless of
overdue fines.

CivTechSA Created in 2017, the CivTechSA Program is a partnership between the City’s Office of Innovation and
Geekdom, a co-working space and leader within the local entrepreneur and technology communities. This
program is dedicated to building a city of problem solvers by working with entrepreneurs and students to find
real, impactful solutions to current civic challenges, and actively grow the startup, entrepreneur, and technology
ecosystems in San Antonio. The program additionally aids with the development of a tech-talent pipeline by
engaging students with civic technology. The anticipated benefits of CivTechSA include attracting workforce,
creating entrepreneurial solutions, cultivating local talent, combatting brain drain, growing the startup
ecosystem, and creating an opportunity for expanded services from the tech community to the City.

MAIJOR INITIATIVES — PLANNING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

SA Tomorrow By 2040, San Antonio's population is expected to increase by approximately 1.0 million people. SA
Tomorrow aims to ensure key aspects of growth and development, such as transportation and connectivity,
housing, complete neighborhoods, public facilities, community safety, historic preservation, military affairs,
natural resources, energy, water supply, jobs, economic competitiveness, education, and more, are addressed in
a strategic manner. SA Tomorrow is an innovative effort to guide the City toward smart, sustainable growth
through three different plans; comprehensive, sustainability, and multimodal transportation. The following is
additional information on the plan.

Comprehensive Plan recommends that the City capitalize on the unique economic geography, further economic
diversification, workforce development, and business attraction and retention. In fiscal year 2019, the City
hosted the 2nd SA Smart City Challenge. Student teams in grades 7-12 researched a San Antonio-specific smart
city problem and proposed a strategy, product, or service as a solution.

Sustainability Plan focuses on enhancing a community’s quality of life and overall resilience while balancing the
impact of our expected growth with existing economic, environmental, and social resources. As part of
implementing the sustainability plan, SA Climate Ready was developed as a community-driven plan to guide San
Antonio’s commitment to reduce its greenhouse gas emissions contributions to climate change and prepare for
current and future climate impacts. The plan lays out a roadmap for the community and municipal organization
to reduce carbon emissions, adapt to a changing climate, and ensure San Antonio remains a healthy, vibrant
place for generations to come. In October 2019, the City adopted the Climate Action Plan. The plan states that
the City as a whole must within three decades be taking in or offsetting more carbon dioxide and other
greenhouse gases than its emitting. This target is based on current climate science and would require shifting
almost entirely away from fossil fuels in power supply and transportation, currently technologically infeasible, or
using currently expensive technologies to keep emissions out of the atmosphere. This makes San Antonio the
2nd major Texas city to adopt the goal of net-zero carbon emissions by 2050.

Multimodal Transportation Plan takes into account all modes of transportation including auto, transit, biking
and walking. It serves as a tool to analyze the transportation priorities to best meet community goals. Consistent
with multimodal transportation, Mayor Nirenberg unveiled ConnectSA, a nonprofit governed by 30 business and
community leaders with a technical advisory group that will develop a modern multi-modal mobility plan to
support San Antonio’s growing community. ConnectSA will focus on projects that expand transportation choices,
improve transportation flow, and introduce smart initiatives that help move more people, faster, smarter, and in
the least costly ways possible.
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MAIJOR INITIATIVES — PLANNING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT (Continued)

The Airport System Development Committee (Development Committee) A Strategic Development Plan (SDP)
for the City’s Airport System was launched in August 2018. The SDP focused initially on the future of the next 20
years at the airport, then examined the possibility for growth and expansion in the following 50 years. The SDP
comprised of two phases. For Phase |, the City hired an engineering, professional services and planning firm to
assist in communicating airport development options to the public. The Development Committee hosted
numerous meetings throughout San Antonio in August and September 2018 to gather input from citizens and
travelers. Based upon community input and a feasibility study, the Development Committee presented to City
Council in October 2018 that expanding the current airport would serve the continuing needs of the City and
surrounding regions for another 50 years. In order to accomplish this goal, the airport would need to add new
runways and other infrastructure by 2023 to keep up with growing traffic at the airport. Phase Il of the SDP plans
to accommodate demand for the next 20-year period by evaluating a range of potential policy and development
alternatives, and by producing a preferred airport development plan for the airfield, terminal, and airport
access.

Mayor’s Housing Policy In August 2017, the Mayor created a
Mayor’s Housing Policy Task Force (Task Force) to create a model on
how to proactively address housing affordability. The Task Force
relied heavily on community input by working with more than 550
community members to develop a housing policy to increase
housing opportunities for San Antonians. Five key actions were
identified in relation to implementing the Housing Policy. Those five
actions were to develop a coordinated housing system; increase City
investment in housing with a ten year funding plan; increase
affordable housing production, rehabilitation, and preservation;
protect and promote neighborhoods; and ensure accountability to
the public. In 2020, the City plans to deploy a coordinated strategy
to address housing affordability by partnering with external stakeholders such as Local Initiatives Support
Corporation, San Antonio Housing Trust and San Antonio Housing Authority (SAHA) who will invest an additional
$5.0 million combined with another $6.2 million from potential grants from tax increment reinvestment zones.
Through this approach the City will leverage more than $11.0 million from external entities for affordable
housing investments while maintaining the City’s $23.7 million from federal grants and the City’s General Fund.

MAIJOR INITIATIVES — WELLNESS

Parks System Plan/Tobacco-Free Parks On April 11, 2019, City Council approved the SA Parks System Plan. The
adopted park system plan will serve as a guide for the Parks and Recreation Department growth and guide
community investments over the next ten years including future bond issues and annual budget decisions. A
recommendation of the System Plan was a move toward tobacco-free parks. City Council approved this
ordinance change, effective June 1, 2019, to expand smoke/tobacco-free areas to include City parks and public
plazas. A tobacco-free policy provides the opportunity to change community norms around tobacco use and will
help reduce youth tobacco use. The Parks and Recreation Department distributed bilingual signage throughout
City parks and developed an education and awareness campaign to ensure the public was informed of the
ordinance change prior to the effective date. Park Police also assisted with education and awareness efforts
prior to enforcement. In partnership with the San Antonio Metropolitan Health District and a grant from the U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services, funding for signage resulted in no budgetary impact to the City.
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MAIJOR INITIATIVES — WELLNESS (Continued)

Cities Connecting Children to Nature Initiative In 2019, the City continued the implementation phase of the
Cities Connecting Children to Nature (CCCN) Initiative by engaging additional stakeholders, conducting outreach
meetings, and launching the first of its local strategy projects. Three strategies emerged from the year-long
planning phase which the City submitted to NLC in February 2019 as part of an implementation plan that will run
through October 2020. These strategies are: 1) Nature Smart Libraries, 2) Nature Enhancements to Community
Centers and School Parks, and 3) Nature Leaders Youth Development. In September 2019, a kick-off event for
the Nature Smart Libraries was held at the Cortez Library to celebrate the strategic partnership between the
Parks and Recreation Department, the San Antonio Public Library and other key CCCN stakeholders.

Elmendorf Lake Park Pool On June 15, 2019, the Parks
and Recreation Department, in collaboration with San
Antonio River Authority, opened its 24th outdoor pool
at ElImendorf Lake Park. The project, funded through the
2017 Bond Program, included a beach entrance to the
pool, shade structures, swim lanes, and other amenities.
The grand opening event was a large success, which
continued throughout the season resulting in over
23,000 visitors at ElImendorf Lake Park Pool, ranking it in
the top three most visited pools in the City’s park
system.

MAIJOR INITIATIVES — WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT

Employer of Choice The City continues to strive to be an employer of choice in the community by providing
competitive compensation and benefits. Beginning January 2019, the City increased its minimum entry wage to
$15 per hour while continuing to offer robust health benefits, retirement matching, GED assistance, tuition
reimbursement, and new to 2019, student loan repayment benefits for eligible full-time employees. A bridging
policy was introduced last year to encourage former employees to return to the City. If an employee leaves
service, and returns within five years, the employee will receive the same health insurance premium rates that
others with their original date of hire are currently paying and build on to their previous years of service towards
retirement vesting. This benefit has been useful to employees who have pursued a degree or served in the
Peace Corps.

The City collaborates with the San Antonio Economic Development Foundation, Bexar County, Workforce
Solutions Alamo, CPS Energy, and other agencies to help targeted industries meet their business goals, provide
good jobs, and increase investments in the community. Economic Development also focuses on alignment of
local industry workforce needs with training providers through SA Works and invests in delegate agencies and
other partners to provide training and support for distressed populations to ensure inroads into the growing San
Antonio economy. In 2019, the City invested $2.3 million for city-wide incentives to stimulate the creation and
retention of jobs and investment in San Antonio in a globally competitive environment.

SA Works The City invests in SA Works, an industry-led advisory council based on national best practices, to lead
the City’s workforce development efforts. SA Works is tasked with identifying in-demand middle-skills jobs in
targeted industries such as advanced manufacturing, cyber/information technology, and healthcare. To date, SA
Works has successfully worked with its private-sector council to develop a blueprint for engaging a number of
key partners such as industry leaders, institutions of higher education, and community-based organizations to
secure private sector partnerships in filling those jobs through preferred providers. SA Works also continues to
carry out its legacy work in providing internships, job shadowing opportunities, and other work-based learning
opportunities for high school, college students, and educators. SA Works was integrated into the SAEDF as part
of their overall economic development mission.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The management of the City is responsible for establishing a system of internal controls that is designed to
provide reasonable assurance that assets are protected from loss, theft, or misuse. The City’s accounting system
supports the internal controls and procedures, which provide reliable financial records for preparing financial
statements in conformity with GAAP. The internal control structure provides reasonable assurance that the
City’s assets are safeguarded as well as the reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements. The
concept of reasonable assurance first recognizes that the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely
to be derived. Secondarily, the evaluation of costs and benefits require estimates and judgments by
management.

Budgetary compliance is a significant tool for managing and controlling governmental activities, as well as
ensuring conformance with the City’s budgetary limits and specifications. The objective of budgetary controls is
to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by City
Council. Levels of budgetary control, that is the levels at which expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriated
amounts, are established at the department level within individual funds. The City utilizes an encumbrance
system of accounting as one mechanism to accomplish effective budgetary control. Another budgetary control is
the generation of a monthly revenue and expenditure report summarizing by department budget and actual
balances with variances which are reviewed by the City’s Office of Management and Budget (OMB), Finance, and
the City Manager’s Office.

Each quarter, OMB and Finance meet with department representatives to assess departments’ revenues and
expenditures based on actual to date and projected revenue and expenditures for the remainder of the fiscal
year. The projected revenue and expenditures are compared against the legally adopted budget for analysis and
are presented to the City Manager’s Office and City Council. During the mid-year budget review, an additional
step is added related to formal budget adjustment recommendations that are made to City Council for adoption
to modify the original budget. At fiscal year-end, as part of the subsequent year’s budget adoption, Council is
provided information regarding the current year’s estimated final amounts and recommendations to again
approve desired budget adjustments and carryforwards for the next fiscal year. The City further implemented
available budget controls within its system of record for capital projects and grants. The system warns when
cumulative expenditures are within 75.0% of total budget and will not allow the processing of non-payroll
transactions in excess of the budget.

Annual Budget Process The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City’s financial planning and control.
The development of the City’s annual budget begins in April. It is a comprehensive effort that involves input
from residents, the Mayor and City Council, outside governmental agencies, private organizations, all City
departments and offices, and City employees. There are several major components to the process, including
gathering input from the community on priorities, the annual policy and goal setting session with the Mayor and
City Council, presentation of the proposed budget, public comment on the proposed budget, City Council budget
work sessions, and budget adoption.

Five-year Financial Forecast At the beginning of the budget process, the City prepares a five-year financial
forecast (Forecast). The Forecast is a financial and budgetary planning tool that provides a current and long-
range assessment of financial conditions and costs for City services. The Forecast includes the identification of
service delivery policy issues that will be encountered in the next five years and that will have a fiscal impact
upon the City’s program of services. The Forecast also examines the local and national economic conditions that
have an impact on the City’s economy and, ultimately, its budget. The Forecast serves as a foundation for
development of the proposed budget by projecting revenues and anticipated expenditures under a defined set
of assumptions. The Forecast provides the Council and staff the opportunity to identify financial issues in
sufficient time to develop a proactive strategy in order to address emerging strategic issues.



FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

City Council Goal Setting A budget goal-setting session was held on May 30, 2018. The purpose of the goal-
setting session was for Mayor and City Council to discuss budget priorities and provide policy direction to staff
for the development of the fiscal year 2019 Adopted Budget. At this session, City Council established four
priorities that guided the development of the budget. These included streets, sidewalks &, transportation/traffic
management systems, filling police vacancies & expanding the mental health unit, comprehensive domestic
violence prevention, and comprehensive affordable housing strategy.

Community Input A major component of the budget process is community input. Through the City’s public
outreach campaign, SASpeakUp, residents have the opportunity to provide feedback through a wide variety of
channels in both English and Spanish, with an emphasis on reaching residents where they are, whether online,
at community-wide events, or at City facilities in their neighborhoods.

Budget Proposal After obtaining the priorities of City Council and the community through the goal setting
session and the community outreach campaign, the City Manager reviews department budgets to ensure they
are in line with priorities and funding availability. The City Manager then presents the proposed budget to the
City Council for review in early August. The proposed budget represents the City staff’'s recommendation of
utilizing revenues and expenditures in order to achieve a balanced budget, while optimizing City service
deliveries and addressing priorities of the City Council and residents.

City Council Work Sessions After the budget was proposed, the City Council held nine sessions to review the
proposed service program details and discuss potential City Council budget amendments. The budget work
sessions provided a forum for public discourse on significant policy issues as well as an opportunity to review
departmental service plans, service enhancement, and revenue changes.

Budget Adoption On September 13, 2018, City Council adopted the fiscal year 2019 Operating and Capital
Budget. City Council must adopt a final budget each year no later than September 27th. The appropriated
budget is prepared by fund (e.g., General Fund) and department (e.g., Finance Department). The legal level of
budgetary control is approved by City Council at the individual fund and departmental level. Expenditures by
department and major category (personnel, non-personnel, and capital outlay) are further defined in the budget
document.

The City Manager or designee may revise the approved department expenditure allotments during the fiscal
year, but in no event shall the aggregate departmental expenditure allotment exceed the appropriation
available to the department unless approved by City Council. The City Council may at any time transfer
unencumbered appropriation balances or any portion thereof within a department, office or agency to another
as requested in writing by the City Manager.

As a means of managing the City’s financial standing, the City established and maintains a budgeted financial
reserve within the General Fund. The financial reserve provides budgetary flexibility for unexpected events,
financial emergencies, and the unusual fluctuation in revenue-expenditure patterns. With the adoption of the
2019 Budget the City continued to follow established Financial Policies. These Financial Policies include a reserve
policy to maintain a minimum General Fund ending balance of 15.0%, comprised of a budgeted financial reserve
of 10.0%, and a targeted 5.0% for a two year budget plan. Other requirements include an additional $1.0 million
contingency reserve in the General Fund and a $3.0 million contingency reserve for the capital budget; maintain
Public Safety spending below 66.0% of the General Fund’s expenditures; manage structural balance in the
General Fund, and address Internal Service fund deficits within three to five years.

Given legislative changes and the City’s overall changing financial framework the City’s adopted budget for fiscal
year 2020 updated the City’s financial policies with the following additions: the City will annually review the
impact of the State imposed 3.5% property tax cap on service delivery; the City will annually review property tax
relief with a focus on homeowners; and the City will also review and periodically adjust fees and charges to
provide for cost recovery, inflation, consumer relief, and/or alignhment with policy goals.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

The City continues to evaluate the financial reserve policy as a means of fiscal prudence in consideration with
City operations, implications to the City’s credit rating, and City Council priorities in order to maintain a strong
and solid financial position coupled with flexibility to adapt to changing economic conditions.

The City further utilizes a comprehensive debt management financial planning program, which is updated
annually and is a major component of the City’s financial planning. The model projects financing needs,
measuring and assessing the cost and timing of each debt issuance. It involves comprehensive financial analysis,
utilizing computer modeling, and incorporates variables such as interest rate sensitivity, assessed value changes,
annexations and current ad valorem tax collection rates. Use of this financial management tool has assisted the
City in meeting its financing needs by facilitating timely and thorough planning, thus allowing the City to
capitalize on market opportunities.

San Antonio holds a ‘AAA’ general obligation bond rating from Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s and a ‘AA+" from
Fitch. The ‘AAA’ bond rating is the highest credit rating an organization can receive and it allows the City to pay
the lowest possible interest rates in the market.

GRANT FUNDS

The City also actively seeks and applies for Federal and State grants that are in line with the City’s core
operations or initiatives as an additional tool in providing services to the citizens of San Antonio. In 2019, the
City was awarded $165.2 million in Federal assistance and $16.5 million in State assistance for a total of $181.7
million. The City would have been unable to construct specific public improvements and operate grant programs
without the support of these funds.

AWARDS

OMB received the Annual Distinguished Budget Award from the Government Finance Officers Association of the
United States and Canada (GFOA). This award recognizes outstanding achievement in preparation of the 2019
Operating and Capital Budget for the 36th consecutive year.

OMB additionally received the Performance Measurement Certificate of Excellence Award for the 8th year in a
row from the International City/County Management Association (ICMA). San Antonio is one of 27 jurisdictions
receiving this highest level of recognition this year. According to the ICMA, “Jurisdictions meeting the
qualifications have demonstrated leadership in continuous improvement and community engagement, and they
serve as examples for other governments to follow.”

The Building & Equipment Services Department has been recognized by Government Fleet Magazine as one of
2019’s top 25 leading fleets. The Leading Fleets program recognizes high-performing public sector fleet

organizations for their leadership, efficiency, ability to overcome challenges, and vision for the future.

The Finance Department received the Achievement of Excellence in Procurement (AEP) award for the 22nd
consecutive year in recognition of organizational excellence in public procurement.
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CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT FOR EXCELLENCE IN FINANCIAL REPORTING

GFOA awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its CAFR for the
fiscal year-ended September 30, 2018. This was the 43rd consecutive year that the government has achieved
this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an
easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR. This report satisfies both GAAP and applicable legal
requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current CAFR continues
to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to
determine its eligibility for another certificate.

INDEPENDENT AUDITS

State statutes and the City’s Charter require that an annual audit by an independent certified public accountant
be conducted. The City selected the accounting firm Grant Thornton LLP. In addition to meeting the
requirements set forth in State statutes and the City’s Charter, the audit was also designed to meet the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance, the State of Texas Single Audit Circular, and the Federal Aviation
Administration Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies.

The Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants on the basic financial statements, Management’s
Discussion and Analysis, required supplementary information, required disclosures and schedules are included in
the Financial Section of this CAFR. The Federal Single Audit Report has been prepared in accordance with the
cost principles contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. The State Single Audit Report has been
prepared in accordance with the State of Texas Single Audit Circular. The Passenger Facility Charges Report has
been prepared in accordance with the Federal Aviation Administration Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for
Public Agencies.

The reports are comprised of the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards, respectively, the
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges, Report of Independent Certified Public
Accountants on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards, Report of
Independent Certified Public Accountants on Compliance for each Major Federal Program and on Internal Control
Over Compliance as Required by the Uniform Guidance, Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants on
Compliance for each Major State Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance as Required by the State of
Texas Single Audit Circular, Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants on Compliance, Internal Control
Over Compliance, and Schedule of Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges Required by the Passenger Facility
Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies, the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Corrective Action Plans,
and the Summary Status of Prior Year Findings for both the Federal and State Single Audits and the Passenger
Facility Charges Report.
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Other information

The introductory and statistical sections are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information
has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on it.

Other reporting required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report,
dated February 20, 2020 on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Entity’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Do Thandon LLF

Houston, Texas
February 20, 2020
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of San Antonio, Texas

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of San Antonio
(the “City") as of and for the year ended September 30, 2019, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our
audit. We did not audit the financial statements of San Antonio Fire and Police Pension
Fund, San Antonio Fire and Police Retiree Health Care Fund, HemisFair Park Area
Redevelopment Corporation, San Antonio Economic Development Corporation, Urban
Renewal Agency of the City of San Antonio dba Office of Urban Redevelopment of San
Antonio, and Visit San Antonio, blended and fiduciary component units, which represent
73%, 81% and 17%, respectively, of the assets, net position/fund balances and
revenues/additions, of the aggregate remaining fund information. We also did not audit
CPS Energy, San Antonio Water System, Brooks Development Authority, Port Authority
of San Antonio dba Port San Antonio, SA Energy Acquisition Public Facility
Corporation, San Antonio Bexar County Soccer Public Facility Corporation, San
Antonio Housing Trust Finance Corporation, San Antonio Housing Trust Foundation,
Inc., San Antonio Housing Trust Public Facility Corporation, and San Antonio
Tricentennial Celebration Commission, discretely presented component units, which
represent 100% of the assets, net position and revenues of the aggregate discretely
presented component units. We also did not audit the San Antonio Early Childhood
Education Municipal Development Corporation (Pre-K 4 SA), a major fund and blended
component unit. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have
been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for
those component units, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Grant Thornton LLP is the U.S. member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and each of its member firms
are separate legal entities and are not a worldwide partnership.



We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. The financial statements of CPS Energy, SA Energy Acquisition Public
Facility Corporation, San Antonio Bexar County Soccer Public Finance Corporation,
San Antonio Housing Trust Finance Corporation, San Antonio Housing Trust Public
Facility Corporation, San Antonio Economic Development Corporation, and Visit San
Antonio were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’'s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit report and the reports of other auditors, the financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of San Antonio, Texas as of September 30, 2019,
and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows
thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.



Required supplementary information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that
the Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Budgetary Comparison Schedule —
General Fund, Budgetary Comparison Schedule — Pre-K 4 SA, Schedules of Changes
in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios, Schedules of Contributions - Pensions,
Schedules of Changes in Total/Net OPEB (Asset) Liability and Related Ratios, and
Schedules of Contributions - OPEB, be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a required part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. This required
supplementary information is the responsibility of management. We and other auditors
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
These limited procedures consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide
any assurance.

Supplementary information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements
that collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The Combining
Financial Statements and Schedules, Supplementary Budget and Actual Schedules for
Legally Adopted Funds, Schedule of Capital Assets by Source, Schedule of Capital
Assets by Function and Activity, and Schedule of Changes in Capital Assets by
Function and Activity, Schedule of Expenditures of Federal awards, as required by Title
2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, the
Schedule of Expenditures of State Awards, as required by the State of Texas Single
Audit Circular, and the Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures of Passenger Facility
Charges, as required by the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
basic financial statements. Such supplementary information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures. These additional procedures included
comparing and reconciling the information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, based on
our audit and the reports of other auditors the supplementary information is fairly stated,
in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.



Other information

The introductory and statistical sections are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information
has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on it.

Other reporting required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report,
dated February 20, 2020 on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Entity’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Do Thandon LLF

Houston, Texas
February 20, 2020
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Management’s Discussion
and Analysis (Unaudited)

The City of San Antonio (City) presents the following discussion and analysis of the City’s financial performance during
the fiscal year-ended September 30, 2019. This discussion and analysis is intended to assist readers in focusing on
significant financial issues and changes in the City’s financial position, and identifying any significant variances from
the adopted budget. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with
additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal and the financial statements provided in this
report. All amounts, unless otherwise indicated, are expressed in thousands of dollars.

Financial Highlights

e The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources by $2,330,727 which is an increase of $78,454 from prior year’s net position. A deficit ending
balance of $1,173,581 in unrestricted net position is primarily due to the City’s $1,903,508 net pension and
OPEB liability less related net unamortized deferred inflows and outflows of resources.

e At the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances
of $1,486,613, an increase of $192,745 compared to the fiscal year 2018 fund balance. Of this amount,
$18,814 is nonspendable, $978,714 is restricted in use, $244,177 is committed, $4,246 is assigned and
$240,662 is unassigned.

e The establishment and maintenance of appropriate reserves within the General Fund is critical to prudent
financial management. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund
was $247,125 which is 21.6% of the total General Fund expenditures. The unassigned fund balance includes
$122,924 in financial reserves. City Council approved financial policies which require the City to maintain a
10.0% budgeted financial reserve. In addition, at the end of fiscal year 2019, $101,796, or 8.2% of budgeted
revenues, was reserved for a two-year balanced budget. The General Fund available ending balance is
$15,018 better than anticipated when compared to re-estimated fiscal year 2019 budget.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as the introduction to the City’s basic financial statements, which
have three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the
financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s
finances, in a manner similar to private-sector business financial presentation.

The statement of net position reports the difference between assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and
deferred inflows of resources as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may help determine
whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed during the
fiscal year. Changes in net position are recorded when the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs
regardless of the timing of the cash flows. Therefore, revenues and expenses reported in this statement for some
items will not result in cash flows until future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused annual
leave). Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended
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to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees or charges (business-type activities).
Governmental activities include general government, public safety, public works, sanitation, health services, culture
and recreation, convention and tourism, urban redevelopment and housing, welfare, education, economic
development and opportunity, and environmental. The business-type activities of the City include the Airport System,
Development Services, Market Square, Parking System, and Solid Waste Management.

In addition, the basic financial statements provide information regarding the City’s legally separate discretely
presented component units. Discretely presented component unit financial information is reported separately from

the primary government in the government-wide financial statements.

Fund Financial Statements

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity.
Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they
are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled.

Fund financial statements are used to present financial information detailing resources that have been identified for
specific activities. The focus of the fund financial statements is on the City’s major funds, although nonmajor funds
are also presented in aggregate and further detailed in the supplementary statements. The City uses fund accounting
to ensure and demonstrate compliance with requirements placed on resources. Funds are divided into three
categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. Fund financial statements allow the City to present information
regarding fiduciary funds, since they are not reported in the government-wide financial statements.

Governmental Funds — Governmental funds are used for essentially the same functions reported in the governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide statement,
governmental fund financial statements focus on the near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well
as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in
evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

As the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to
compare the information presented in the governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term
impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains five individual governmental fund types for financial reporting purposes. The governmental fund
types are General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Capital Projects Funds, Debt Service Funds, and Permanent Funds.
Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement
of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Debt Service, San Antonio Early
Childhood Education Municipal Development Corporation (Pre-K 4 SA), Convention Center Hotel Finance Corporation
(CCHFC), and 2017 General Obligation Bonds, all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other
funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation labeled Nonmajor Governmental Funds. Individual fund
data for each nonmajor governmental fund is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

Proprietary Funds — The City maintains two types of proprietary funds. Enterprise Funds are used to report the
functions presented in business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise
funds to account for its Airport System, Development Services, Market Square, Parking System, and Solid Waste
Management. Internal Service Funds are used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City’s various
functions, including, self-insurance programs, information services, other internal services, and capital management
services. The services provided by these funds predominantly support the governmental rather than the business-
type functions. They have been included within the governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements and are reported alongside the enterprise funds in the fund financial statements. Information is
presented separately in the proprietary funds’ statement of net position and in the proprietary funds’ statement of
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revenues, expenses, and changes in fund net position for the Airport System and Solid Waste Management, which are
considered to be major funds. Data from the other enterprise funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation labeled “Nonmajor Enterprise Funds”. Individual fund data for each nonmajor enterprise fund and each
internal service fund is provided in the form of respective combining statements elsewhere in this report. The Internal
Service Funds are combined into a single aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements.

Fiduciary Funds — Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the primary
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements as the resources of those
funds are not available to support the City’s programs and operations. With the exception of agency funds, the
accounting for fiduciary funds is much like that used for the proprietary funds.

Notes to the financial statements — The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding
of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other information — In addition to the basic financial statements and the accompanying notes, this report also
presents the required supplementary information of (a) the City’s General Fund and Pre-K 4 SA’s budgetary
comparison schedules that demonstrate compliance with their budget, and (b) pension and postemployment
schedules. The budgets for the Debt Service Fund, various Special Revenue Funds, and a Permanent Fund, which are
legally adopted on an annual basis, are also included in the CAFR as supplementary schedules within the Combining
Financial Statements and Schedules. Additionally, this document presents the Financial Reporting and Compliance
Report on Federal and State Grants, or Single Audit report, and the Airport Passenger Facility Charges.

Government-Wide Financial Statement Analysis

The following tables, graphs, and analysis discuss the financial position and changes to the financial position for the
City as a whole as of and for the year-ended September 30, 2019.

Net Position
Year-Ended September 30, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for September 30, 2018)
Governmental Business-Type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2019 2018* 2019 2018* 2019 2018*
Current and Other Assets S 2,142,049 S 1,934,672 S 287,675 S 266,736 S 2,429,724 S 2,201,408
Capital Assets 5,064,773 4,930,288 811,833 819,766 5,876,606 5,750,054
Total Assets 7,206,822 6,864,960 1,099,508 1,086,502 8,306,330 7,951,462
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 597,677 221,802 40,425 11,916 638,102 233,718
Current and Other Liabilities 565,308 591,379 62,359 67,948 627,667 659,327
Long-term Liabilities 5,124,314 4,326,801 693,175 659,243 5,817,489 4,986,044
Total Liabilities 5,689,622 4,918,180 755,534 727,191 6,445,156 5,645,371
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 160,039 272,264 8,510 15,272 168,549 287,536
Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 2,957,496 2,852,015 331,455 338,367 3,288,951 3,190,382
Restricted 45,376 52,819 169,981 136,568 215,357 189,387
Unrestricted (Deficit) (1,048,034) (1,008,516) (125,547) (118,980) (1,173,581) (1,127,496)
Total Net Position S 1,954,838 $ 1,896,318 S 375889 S 355955 S 2,330,727 S 2,252,273

*Amounts have been restated — see Note 19 Prior Period Restatement for more information.

For the year-ended September 30, 2019, total assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources by $2,330,727. Investment in capital assets representing the largest portion of the City’s
net position, $3,288,951, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding
balances of borrowings attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Capital assets
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are used to provide services to the citizens of San Antonio and are not available for further spending. Although the
City’s investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt and any related deferred outflows of resources, the
resources needed to repay the debt must be provided from other sources, as capital assets cannot be used to
liquidate liabilities. The restricted portion of the total net position totaling $215,357 represents resources that are
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used.

The following schedule provides a detail of the changes to the City’s net position:

Changes in Net Position
Year-Ended September 30, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for September 30, 2018)
Governmental Business-Type Total Primary
Activities Activities Government
2019 2018* 2019 2018* 2019 2018*
Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services S 234562 S 238872 S 285247 S 261,919 $ 519,809 $ 500,791
Operating Grants and Contributions 184,117 186,005 184,117 186,005
Capital Grants and Contributions 61,254 49,653 47,296 54,198 108,550 103,851
General Revenues:
Property Taxes 617,045 577,870 617,045 577,870
Other Taxes 544,577 515,493 544,577 515,493
Revenues from Utilities 377,652 389,319 377,652 389,319
Investment Earnings 39,682 19,031 6,605 3,808 46,287 22,839
Miscellaneous 116,883 96,643 5,663 4,568 122,546 101,211
Total Revenues 2,175,772 2,072,886 344,811 324,493 2,520,583 2,397,379
Expenses:
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
General Government 137,479 134,370 137,479 134,370
Public Safety 846,878 721,695 846,878 721,695
Public Works 327,811 349,150 327,811 349,150
Sanitation 7,507 5,748 7,507 5,748
Health Services 75,978 80,505 75,978 80,505
Culture and Recreation 208,092 214,302 208,092 214,302
Convention and Tourism 82,251 60,426 82,251 60,426
Urban Redevelopment and Housing 56,855 38,521 56,855 38,521
Welfare 164,042 157,828 164,042 157,828
Education 83,331 74,314 83,331 74,314
Economic Development and Opportunity 34,137 27,463 34,137 27,463
Environmental 930 209 930 209
Bond Issuance Costs 3,008 1,832 3,008 1,832
Interest on Long-Term Debt 91,909 91,718 91,909 91,718
Business-Type Activities:
Airport System 147,216 134,352 147,216 134,352
Development Services 38,184 30,490 38,184 30,490
Market Square 2,535 2,488 2,535 2,488
Parking System 10,051 12,321 10,051 12,321
Solid Waste Management 123,390 113,513 123,390 113,513
Total Expenses 2,120,208 1,958,081 321,376 293,164 2,441,584 2,251,245
Change in Net Position
Before Transfers 55,564 114,805 23,435 31,329 78,999 146,134
Transfers 2,956 35,554 (3,501) (36,401) (545) (847)
Net Change in Net Position 58,520 150,359 19,934 (5,072) 78,454 145,287
Beginning, Net Position (Previously Reported) 1,896,318 1,746,490 355,955 361,075 2,252,273 2,107,565
Adoption of GASB 83 and Other Restatement (531) (48) (579)
Beginning Net Position, Restated 1,896,318 1,745,959 355,955 361,027 2,252,273 2,106,986
Ending, Net Position S 1,954,838 S 1896318 $ 375889 $ 355955 S 2,330,727 S 2,252,273

 — |
*Amounts have been restated — see Note 19 Prior Period Restatement for more information.




The City’s total revenues were $2,520,583 for fiscal year-ended September 30, 2019. Revenues from Governmental
Activities totaled $2,175,772 (86.3%) and revenues from Business-Type Activities totaled $344,811 (13.7%). Expenses
for the City totaled $2,441,584. Of total expenses, Governmental Activity expenses totaled $2,120,208 (86.8%) and
Business-Type Activity expenses totaled $321,376 (13.2%).

Governmental Activities

Program revenues for the City’s Governmental Activities totaled $479,933, which is $5,403 less than the previous
fiscal year’s balance of $474,530. General revenues for the City’s Governmental Activities totaled $1,695,839
compared to $1,598,356 in the prior year. Expenses for Governmental Activities were $2,120,208 compared to prior
year’s expenses of $1,958,081.

The City’s net position in governmental activities increased by $58,520. The following analysis highlights changes of
$10,000 or more in either direction:

e Property Tax Revenues increased by $39,175 due to new improvements and higher property valuation. The
City’s property tax rate remained at 55.827 cents per $100 of valuation in fiscal year 2019.

e Other Taxes Revenues increased by $29,084. This is due primarily to the General Sales and Use Taxes increase
of $19,502, attributed to growth in business spending and significant increases from retail trade, wholesale
trade, and manufacturing sales year over year. The City saw a 5.2% increase in sales tax over fiscal year 2018.
Occupancy Tax revenues increased by $9,085 attributed to the implementation of the City’s Short Term
Rental ordinance and an increase in room demand. Additionally, the City created the San Antonio Tourism
Public Improvement District, which collects a 1.25% fee per night hotel stay, resulting in $7,169 additional
revenue in fiscal year 2019. This funding is used by Visit San Antonio for funding the sales, marketing, and
promotion of San Antonio to convention, group, business, and leisure visitors.

e Revenues from Utilities decreased by $11,667. CPS Energy revenues decreased by $12,348 due to lower
energy prices and a 1.46% decrease in electric sales caused by more temperate than normal weather.
Additionally, revenue from SAWS increased by $681 due to the 4.7% rate increase that became effective
January 1, 2019.

e Investment Earnings reflected an increase of $20,651 due to a higher cash balance in fiscal year 2019 and an
average portfolio rate of 2.5% in fiscal year 2019 versus 1.8% in fiscal year 2018.

e Miscellaneous Revenues increased by $20,240 due to the internal service fund rebate from the Workers’
Compensation, Insurance Reserve, and Employee Health Benefits funds.

e The increase of $32,598 in Transfers, Net is due primarily to increased spending on the City’s Street
Maintenance Projects.

e The increase of $125,183 in Public Safety expenses is primarily due to increased personnel expenses, higher
number of health insurance and workers’ compensation claims, and the increase in net pension and OPEB
liabilities.

e The decrease of $21,339 in Public Works expenses is primarily due to the completion of the Northwest and
Southeast Service Center projects in 2018. Public Works shares these facilities with Solid Waste
Management.

e The increase of $21,825 in Convention and Tourism is due to the San Antonio Tourism Public Improvement
District funding provided to Visit San Antonio and increases in the net pension and OPEB liabilities.

e The increase of $18,334 in Urban Redevelopment and Housing expenses is primarily due to new homebuyers
and home rehabilitation programs, an increase in grant funding used for large multi-family projects, and the
increase in net pension and OPEB liabilities.




Business-Type Activities

Program revenues for the City’s Business-Type Activities totaled $332,543, which is $16,426 higher than the previous
fiscal year’s balance of $316,117. Expenses for Business-Type Activities were $321,376 compared to prior year’s
expenses of $293,164.

Business-Type Activities increased the City’s net position by $19,934 primarily because of the following:

e Charges for Services for business-type activities increased by $23,328, primarily driven by the Solid Waste
Management increase of $15,902. Increased revenue from the processing, recycling, environmental, and out-
of-cycle service fees is attributed to a 1.0% customer base growth in utilization of trash bins and a 3.7%
growth for recycling. Development Services revenues increased by $3,747 due to increased commercial and
residential permit counts and higher average project valuations. Airport System revenues increased by
$3,322 due to 6.5% more passenger enplanements and 6.0% more passenger deplanements, resulting in
higher parking revenues.

e The increase of $12,864 in Airport System expenses is attributed to increased salaries and related expenses
and increased depreciation expense, primarily related to the CONRAC facility.

e Theincrease of $9,877 in Solid Waste System expenses is attributed to an increase in net OPEB liabilities.

e The increase of $7,694 in Development Services expenses is attributed to an increase in net OPEB liabilities
and increased expenses for the Accela project.

e The decrease of $32,900 in Transfers, Net is due to high expenses from Solid Waste Management in fiscal
year 2018 to fund their share of the design, land acquisition, and construction of service centers for the
Northwest Service Center and Southeast Service Center.

Financial Analysis of Governmental Funds

Activities of the Primary Government’s General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Fund, and Capital Projects
Funds are considered general government functions. The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. Special
Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted or committed to
expenditures for specific purposes other than debt service or capital projects. The Debt Service Fund is used to
account for financial activity related to the City’s general bonded indebtedness, as well as other long-term
obligations. The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial activity related to the City indebtedness for
Capital Projects, other agency contributions, and the operating activities of those projects.

Revenues from taxes increased by $68,259, which is primarily attributable to: (1) a $39,175 increase in property tax
revenues, (2) a $19,502 increase in general sales and use tax revenues, and (3) a $9,085 increase in occupancy taxes.
The increase in property taxes is due to higher property valuations and new improvements increasing the levy. The
increase in general sales and use taxes is a result of a continued consumer confidence in the San Antonio area and
increased activity associated with tourism and convention. The increase in occupancy taxes is due to the new San
Antonio Tourism Public Improvement District, the City’s new Short Term Rental ordinance, and an increase in room
demand.




Revenue from Taxes ($ in millions)
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The total fund balance of the General Fund at year-end was $365,042, an increase of $14,902 from the total fund
balance of $350,140 in fiscal year 2018. The fund balance is categorized as follows; $7,084 in nonspendable, $2,392 in
restricted, $108,420 in committed, $21 in assigned, and $247,125 in unassigned fund balances. The unassigned fund
balance includes $122,924 in budgeted financial reserves held by the City, as well as amounts available for additional
appropriations at the end of the fiscal year inclusive of a $101,796 reserve for Two-Year Budget Plan. The $14,902
increase in fund balance is the result of higher revenue collections of property taxes and general and sales use tax.

The total fund balance of the Debt Service Fund at year-end was $32,466, a decrease of $5,680 from the total fund
balance of $38,146 in fiscal year 2018. The entire fund balance is restricted for payment of debt service. The decrease
in fund balance is attributed to an increase in principal and interest payments.

Pre-K 4 SA, a blended component unit, had an ending fund balance of $7,126, a decrease of $1,614 from ending fund
balance of $8,740 in fiscal year 2018. Pre-K 4 SA’s fund balance is restricted for education. The decrease in fund
balance is attributed to increased facility costs, and other inflationary costs.

Convention Center Hotel Finance Corporation had an ending fund balance of $6,439 for fiscal year 2019, an increase
of $168 from the total fund balance of $6,271 in fiscal year 2018. The fund balance is restricted for debt service
expenditures related to the Grand Hyatt San Antonio.

The total fund balance of the 2017 General Obligation Bonds at year-end was $384,662, an increase of $158,646 from
the total fund balance of $226,016 in fiscal year 2018. The increase is from the third year of sales of obligation bonds
issued to support capital expenditures associated with the $850,000 bond program approved by voters in fiscal year
2017.




General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Variances in Budget Appropriations
(Budgetary Basis)
General Fund
Original Final Actual Variances
Budget Budget Results Budget Final to Actual
Resources (Inflows):

Taxes S 694,719 S 701,354 S 708,138 6,635 S 6,784
Licenses and Permits 9,123 9,415 7,351 292 (2,064)
Intergovernmental 5,031 5,624 6,376 593 752
Revenues from Utilities 381,311 373,692 377,652 (7,619) 3,960
Charges for Services 69,135 69,426 68,062 291 (1,364)
Fines and Forfeits 11,729 11,267 9,911 (462) (1,356)
Miscellaneous 11,099 11,536 31,103 437 19,567
Investment Earnings 6,019 8,506 9,365 2,487 859
Contributions 44 44
Transfers from Other Funds 22,238 22,238 22,754 516

Total S 1,210,404 S 1,213,058 S 1,240,756 2,654 S 27,698

Charges to Appropriations (Outflows):

General Government S 85,338 S 93,545 S 91,761 8,207 S 1,784
Public Safety 768,414 771,980 771,469 3,566 511
Public Works 70,945 76,456 75,235 5,511 1,221
Health Services 29,277 30,015 29,978 738 37
Welfare 38,072 39,950 38,951 1,878 999
Culture and Recreation 121,907 129,919 129,548 8,012 371
Economic Development and Opportunity 9,965 24,281 24,626 14,316 (345)
Urban Redevelopment and Housing 27,655 27,923 27,848 268 75
Debt Service:

Principal Retirement 3,240 3,240 3,240

Interest 115 115 115
Transfers to Other Funds 81,678 140,493 138,002 58,815 2,491

Total S 1,236,606 S 1,337,917 S 1,330,773 101,311 S 7,144

Changes in original revenue appropriations to the final amended budget resulted in a net increase of $2,654. This
increase can be summarized by the following:

e Increase in Taxes is primarily composed of a $4,423 increase in Sales Tax due to higher than anticipated
revenues due to an increase in the collections received from manufacturing, telecom, wholesale trade, and
lodging and food services. Additionally, a $2,786 increase in Business and Franchise Tax for cable receipts
resulted from increased cable subscribers.

e Revenues from utilities decreased due to lower than anticipated CPS revenues during the first half of the
fiscal year resulting from mild weather and lower fuel rates.

e Budgeted interest rates increased from the original budget of 2.5% to the final budget of 2.6%.

Final budgeted revenue appropriations for the General Fund were $1,213,058 while actual revenues on a budgetary
basis were $1,240,756, creating a favorable variance of $27,698. Variance explanations are listed below:

e Sales tax revenues are higher than the final budgeted amount due to an increase in the collections received
from manufacturing, telecom, wholesale trade, and lodging and food services.

e Revenues from utilities are higher than the final budgeted amount as a result of increased off-system sales
caused by record high temperatures and state-wide energy usage in August.
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e Miscellaneous revenues are higher than the final budget amount due to the internal service fund rebate from
the Workers’ Compensation, Insurance Reserve, and Employee Health Benefits funds.

Changes in original expenditure budget appropriations to the final amended budget appropriations resulted in a net
$101,311 increase in appropriations. This increase can be summarized by the following:

e General Government increased by $8,207 to capture prior year carryforwards for unspent fund balance and
funding to be used for special projects, such as SA2020.

e Public Safety increased by $3,566 to capture prior year carryforwards for various Law Enforcement and Fire
Protection encumbrances.

e  Public Works increased by $5,511 to capture prior year carryforwards primarily for the NAMP projects.

e Culture and Recreation increased by $8,012 to capture prior year carryforwards of $6,048 for the Inner City
Incentive program, and the remainder for other park contracts.

e Economic Development and Opportunity increased by $14,316 to capture prior year carryforwards for multi-
year incentive agreements with numerous entities.

e Transfers increased by $58,815 to capture prior year carryforwards and closing ordinance adjustments
primarily for the 2017 and 2018 Street Maintenance projects.

Final budgeted expenditure appropriations for the General Fund were $1,337,917 while actual expenditures on a
budgetary basis were $1,330,773, creating a favorable variance of $7,144. Variance explanations are listed below:

e General Government recognized savings of $1,784 primarily due to vacancy savings in personal services in
the amount of $959, contractual savings of $377 due to lower than anticipated usage, motor fuel savings of
$267, and $250 of expenses for Unified Development Code updates expensed to other funds.

e Transfers to Other Funds recognized savings of $2,491 due primarily to the delay in the purchase of the Fire
Department wellness building.

e  Welfare recognized savings of $999 due primarily to lower than anticipated outside agency spending.

e Public Works recognized savings of $1,221 attributed to lower than anticipated spending on traffic calming
devices.

e Economic Development and Opportunity reflected an overage of $345 due to Council approved future
commitments of the fund’s entire available fund balance. There is sufficient fund balance to cover the
excess.

Capital Assets

The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of September 30, 2019
amounts to $5,876,606 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, other non-
depreciable assets, construction in progress, non-depreciable intangible assets, depreciable intangible assets,
buildings, improvements, infrastructure, and machinery and equipment. The net increase in the City’s investment in
capital assets for the current fiscal year was $126,552, which is comprised of an increase of $134,485 in governmental
activities and a decrease of $7,933 in business-type activities.




Capital Assets
Year-Ended September 30, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for September 30, 2018)
Governmental Business-Type Total

Activities Activities Primary Government

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Land $ 1418662 $ 1,427,003 $ 15796 S 15796 S 1,434,458 S 1,442,799
Other Non-Depreciable Assets 347 347
Construction in Progress 271,543 251,310 23,267 27,214 294,810 278,524
Non-Depreciable Intangible Assets 206,062 176,579 206,062 176,579
Depreciable Intangible Assets 252 334 252 323 504 657
Buildings 906,324 902,486 397,223 396,368 1,303,547 1,298,854
Improvements 624,509 660,332 343,965 354,640 968,474 1,014,972
Infrastructure 1,391,372 1,278,573 1,391,372 1,278,573
Machinery and Equipment 246,049 233,324 31,330 25,425 277,379 258,749
Total $ 5064773 $ 4,930,288 $ 811,833 $ 819,766 S 5,876,606 S 5,750,054

During fiscal year 2019, the City transferred $297,831 of construction in progress to depreciable asset classes for
completed capital projects, mainly comprised of city-wide streets and drainage projects, parks improvements, and
municipal facilities, and $862 transferred to non-depreciable asset classes, which consisted of value added for Land
and Easements purchased with the Edward’s Aquifer Land Acquisitions Project.

The following schedule provides a summary of the City’s capital assets:

Change in Capital Assets
Year-Ended September 30, 2019

Governmental  Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

Beginning Balance S 4,930,288 S 819,766 S 5,750,054
Additions 381,997 41,851 423,848

Deletions (51,087) (7,935) (59,022)
Accumulated Depreciation (196,425) (41,849) (238,274)
Total S 5064773 S 811,833 S 5,876,606
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Debt Administration

Long-Term Debt

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had a total of $3,290,131 in bonds, certificates, and notes outstanding.
Additional information on the City’s long-term debt, including descriptions of the new issues, can be found in Note 7
Long-Term Debt.

Outstanding Debt
Year-Ended September 30, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for September 30, 2018)

Governmental Business-Type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Bonds Payable:
Tax-Exempt General Obligation Bonds 1,408,385 S 1,112,315 1,950 2,135 1,410,335 $ 1,114,450
Taxable General Obligation Bonds 4,135 191,550 6,870 8,015 11,005 199,565
Tax-Exempt Certificates of Obligation 372,640 359,540 38,725 33,620 411,365 393,160
Taxable Certificates of Obligation 68,560 71,325 68,560 71,325
Tax Notes 57,135 53,020 57,135 53,020
Revenue Bonds 814,164 827,924 418,560 434,225 1,232,724 1,262,149
Bonds from Direct Placements 50,765 54,210 36,000 36,000 86,765 90,210
Capital Appreciation Bonds (CAB) 12,242 10,191 12,242 10,191

Total 2,788,026 S 2,680,075 $ 502,105 $§ 513,995 3,290,131 S 3,194,070

Governmental Activities

On January 22, 2019, the City issued $24,570 in General Improvement Refunding Bonds, Series 2019. The refunded
governmental activities amount was used to fund an escrow account for the redemption, discharge and defeasance of
the refunded obligations.

On August 29, 2019, the City issued $383,940 in General Improvement and Refunding Bonds, Series 2019, $36,425 in
Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2019, and $34,535 in Tax Notes, Series 2019.

The General Improvement and Refunding Bonds, Series 2019 refunded portion of $168,825 were used to fund an
escrow account for the redemption, discharge, and defeasance of the refunded obligations. The remaining proceeds
of $215,115 were issued mainly to finance improvements to streets, bridges, and sidewalks; drainage and flood
control; parks, recreation, and open spaces; library museum and cultural facilities; public safety facilities; and
neighborhood initiatives.

The Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2019 allocated $6,190 from proceeds to
Development Services Fund and the remaining $30,235 were issued to finance improvements to the public safety
radios and system replacement and street maintenance.

The Tax Note, Series 2019 were issued to finance improvements to information technology systems, municipal
facilities, and street maintenance.
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Business-Type Activities

On August 29, 2019, $6,190 of the $36,425 in Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2019
was allocated to Development Services for improvements to the City’s Enterprise Land Management System.

Standard & Poor’s, Moody’s, and Fitch’s underlying ratings for City obligations during fiscal year 2019 were as follows:

Bond Ratings
Year-Ended September 30, 2019

Standard

& Poor's Moody's Fitch
General Obligation/Certificates of Obligation/Tax Notes AAA Aaa AA+
Airport System A+ Al A+
Airport PFC A A2 A
Airport CFC A A3 BBB+
Municipal Drainage Utility System Revenue Bonds AA+ Aa2 AA

The Constitution of the State of Texas and the City Charter limit the amount of debt the City may incur. For more
information related to these limits see Note 7 Long-Term Debt.

Currently Known Facts

For more information on other currently known facts, please see Note 20 Subsequent Events.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s position for those with an interest in the
government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional
financial information should be addressed to the Finance Department, P.O. Box 839966, San Antonio, TX 78283-3966
or via email at http://www.sanantonio.gov/Finance/about/contactandfeedback.

(The remainder of this page left blank intentionally)
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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Statement of Net Position
As of September 30, 2019
(In Thousands)

Assets:
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables, Net
Materials and Supplies, at Cost
Internal Balances
Due From Other Governmental Agencies, Net
Deposits
Prepaid Expenses
Other Assets
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables, Net
Materials and Supplies, at Cost
Deferred Charges
Prepaid Expenses
Due From Other Governmental Agencies, Net
Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets:
Non Depreciable
Depreciable, Net
Investments
Receivables, Net
Prepaid Expenses
Pension Regulatory Asset
Other Noncurrent Assets
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

Liabilities:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Current Liabilities
Accrued Interest
Unearned Revenue
Current Portion of Long-Term Obligations
Due To Other Governmental Agencies
Liabilities Payable From Restricted Assets:
Accounts Payable and Current Liabilities
Accrued Interest on Bonds and Certificates
Unearned Revenue
Due To Other Governmental Agencies
Current Portion of Long-Term Obligations
Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Noncurrent Portion of Long-Term Obligations
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:
Debt Service
Capital Projects
Operating and Other Reserves
Perpetual Care:
Expendable
Nonexpendable
Unrestricted (Deficit)
Total Net Position

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

GOVERNMENTAL  BUSINESS-TYPE COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL UNITS
$ 69,720 $ 7,564 $ 77,284 S 429,848
571,604 79,666 651,270 566,247
155,678 14,547 170,225 336,259
9,802 1,056 10,858 160,764
2,231 (4,413) (2,182)
2,910 70 2,980 999
230 230
1,109 286 1,395 88,251
1,487
208,571 68,810 277,381 341,388
820,538 115,968 936,506 1,575,059
89,872 3,775 93,647 6,574
4,855 4,855
60,147
689 278 967
22,525 68 22,593
1,960,334 287,675 2,248,009 3,567,023
1,896,267 39,063 1,935,330 1,800,804
3,168,506 772,770 3,941,276 12,064,499
310 310
181,405 181,405 3,592
162,638
239,806
299,927
5,246,488 811,833 6,058,321 14,571,266
7,206,822 1,099,508 8,306,330 18,138,289
597,677 40,425 638,102 818,347
89,751 18,342 108,093 477,800
41 21 62
3,483 1,497 4,980 2,646
111,815 8,278 120,093 70,514
78 3 81
97,226 6,657 103,883 42,176
17,642 5,943 23,585 23,697
45,122 45,122
91 91
200,059 21,618 221,677 303,169
565,308 62,359 627,667 920,002
5,124,314 693,175 5,817,489 10,984,002
5,124,314 693,175 5,817,489 10,984,002
5,689,622 755,534 6,445,156 11,904,004
160,039 8,510 168,549 197,205
2,957,496 331,455 3,288,951 4,710,396
26,463 33,669 60,132 130,709
255 136,312 136,567 976,179
1,066 1,066 59,332
12,524 12,524
5,068 5,068
(1,048,034) (125,547) (1,173,581) 978,811
3 1954838 S 375889 _$ 2330727 S 6,855,427

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Statement of Activities
Year-Ended September 30, 2019
(In Thousands)

PROGRAM REVENUES

NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION

OPERATING CAPITAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
CHARGES FOR GRANTS AND GRANTS AND GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE COMPONENT
FUNCTION/PROGRAM ACTIVITIES EXPENSES SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS  CONTRIBUTIONS ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL UNITS
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
General Government 137,479 S 22,787 S 2,751 S 10,080 S (101,861) S - S (101,861)
Public Safety 846,878 50,399 14,199 (782,280) (782,280)
Public Works 327,811 64,578 27,410 (235,823) (235,823)
Sanitation 7,507 7,176 539 208 208
Health Services 75,978 16,121 19,965 (39,892) (39,892)
Culture and Recreation 208,092 71,081 4,010 14,771 (118,230) (118,230)
Convention and Tourism 82,251 68 8,993 (73,190) (73,190)
Urban Redevelopment and Housing 56,855 1,096 20,466 (35,293) (35,293)
Welfare 164,042 116,250 (47,792) (47,792)
Education 83,331 747 5,762 (76,822) (76,822)
Economic Development and Opportunity 34,137 (34,137) (34,137)
Environmental 930 577 107 (246) (246)
Bond Issuance Costs 3,008 (3,008) (3,008)
Interest on Long-Term Debt 91,909 (91,909) (91,909)
Total Governmental Activities 2,120,208 234,562 184,117 61,254 (1,640,275) (1,640,275)
Business-Type Activities:
Airport System 147,216 104,298 47,296 4,378 4,378
Development Services 38,184 35,092 (3,092) (3,092)
Market Square 2,535 2,891 356 356
Parking System 10,051 9,754 (297) (297)
Solid Waste Management 123,390 133,212 9,822 9,822
Total Business-Type Activities 321,376 285,247 47,296 11,167 11,167
Total Primary Government 2,441,584 S 519,809 S 184,117 S 108,550 (1,640,275) 11,167 (1,629,108)
Discretely Presented Component Units:
CPS Energy 2,608,031 S 2,744,159 S - S 54,936 S 191,064
SAWS 589,613 691,046 145,990 247,423
Brooks 37,086 21,822 222 1,392 (13,650)
Port Authority of San Antonio 37,382 39,119 7,347 9,084
SABC Soccer Public Facility Corporation 1,176 244 (932)
SA Energy Acquisition Public Facility Corporation 49,696 46,979 (2,717)
San Antonio Housing Trust Finance Corp. 244 979 735
San Antonio Housing Trust Foundation, Inc. 861 1,561 700
San Antonio Housing Trust Public Facility Corp. 2,260 3,829 1,569
SA Tricentennial Celebration Commission 2,849 8 928 (1,913)
Total Component Units 3,329,198 S 3,549,746 S 1,150 S 209,665 431,363
General Revenues:
Taxes:
Property 617,045 617,045
General Sales and Use 397,869 397,869
Selective Sales and Use 9,928 9,928
Gross Receipts Business 32,109 32,109
Occupancy 100,648 100,648
Penalties and Interest on Delinquent Taxes 4,023 4,023
Revenues from Utilities 377,652 377,652
Investment Earnings 39,682 6,605 46,287 45,379
Miscellaneous 116,883 5,663 122,546 6,946
Special Items (182,723)
Adjustment for STP Pension Cost (8,145)
Transfers, net 2,956 (3,501) (545)
Total General Revenues and Transfers 1,698,795 8,767 1,707,562 (138,543)
Change in Net Position 58,520 19,934 78,454 292,820
Net Position - Beginning of Fiscal Year (restated) 1,896,318 355,955 2,252,273 6,562,607
Net Position - End of Fiscal Year S 1,954,838 S 375889 _S 2,330,727 S 6,855,427

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.




CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
As of September 30, 2019

(In Thousands)

Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables, Net
Materials and Supplies, at Cost
Prepaid Expenditures
Due From Other Funds
Due From Other Governmental Agencies, Net
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables, Net
Materials and Supplies, at Cost
Prepaid Expenditures
Due From Other Funds
Due From Other Governmental Agencies, Net

Total Assets

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Fund Balances:

Liabilities:
Vouchers Payable
Accounts Payable - Other
Accrued Payroll
Accrued Leave Payable
Unearned Revenue
Due To Other Funds
Due To Other Governmental Agencies
Liabilities Payable From Restricted Assets:
Vouchers Payable
Accounts Payable - Other
Accrued Payroll
Accrued Leave Payable
Unearned Revenue
Amounts Held in Trust
Due To Other Funds
Due To Other Governmental Agencies
Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Fund Balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and

Fund Balances

MAJOR FUNDS
CONVENTION
CENTER 2017 GENERAL NONMAIJOR TOTAL
DEBT HOTEL FINANCE OBLIGATION GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
GENERAL SERVICE PRE-K 4 SA CORP. BONDS FUNDS FUNDS

$ 29,323 B S B - $ 21,498 $ 50,821
293,856 103,432 397,288
150,013 4,453 154,466
6,866 272 7,138

218 846 1,064

15,563 346 15,909

1,648 1,648

191 27,932 5,930 21,790 31,131 121,490 208,464

2,120 3,744 351,979 462,695 820,538

10,251 8,913 1,324 171,099 1,552 78,138 271,277

4,855 4,855

689 689

441 3,535 69,520 73,496

22,525 22,525

$ 510,049 41,030 _$ 10,789 _$ 192,889 S 384662 _$ 890,759 _$ 2,030,178
$ 21,149 B S B S 2,765 $ 23,914
11,199 4,962 16,161
21,984 196 22,180

8,045 8,045

3,112 371 3,483

31,632 31,632

78 78

729 47,478 48,207

2,934 26,497 29,431

4,228 4,228

36 36

45,267 45,267

15,360 15,360

59,330 59,330

91 91

97,199 3,663 15,360 191,221 307,443
47,308 8,564 171,090 8,660 236,122

7,084 11,730 18,814

2,392 32,466 7,126 6,439 384,662 545,629 978,714
108,420 135,757 244,177

21 4,225 4,246

247,125 (6,463) 240,662
365,042 32,466 7,126 6,439 384,662 690,878 1,486,613

$ 510,049 41,030  $ 10,789  $ 192,889  $ 384662 S 890,759  $ 2,030,178

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position

Governmental Funds
As of September 30, 2019
(In Thousands)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different because:

Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are
not reported in the governmental funds.

Governmental Capital Assets:

Land 1,418,662
Construction In Progress 271,543
Non-Depreciable Intangible Assets 206,062
Depreciable Intangible Assets 4,058
Buildings 1,381,356
Improvements 1,034,952
Infrastructure 3,566,111
Machinery and Equipment 379,068
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (3,329,640)

Total Governmental Capital Assets

Some of the City's revenues will be collected after year-end, but are not available soon enough
to pay for the current year's expenditures, and therefore, are not reported in the governmental
funds as revenues, but as deferred inflows of resources-unavailable revenue

Revenues previously recorded as unavailable revenue in the fund financial statements

Long-term investments are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in the
governmental funds

Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge the cost of certain activities to
individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the Internal Service Funds are included in the
governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position.

Deferred outflows of resources related to pension, OPEB, loss on bond refunding, and asset
retirement obligations
Deferred inflows of resources related to pension and OPEB

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current year, therefore are not reported in
the governmental funds.

Governmental Bonds Payable (2,782,918)
Unamortized Discount/(Premium) on Bonds, Net (186,322)
Capital Lease Liability (18,771)
Notes Payable (6,323)
Net OPEB and Pension Liability (2,015,677)
Accrued Interest Payable (17,642)
Pollution Remediation Payable (376)
Accrued Leave Payable (214,936)
Other Payable (13)

Net Position of Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.

S 1,486,613

4,932,172

236,267

310

125,402

572,108
(155,056)

(5,242,978
S 1,954,838
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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
Year-Ended September 30, 2019

(In Thousands)

Revenues:
Taxes:
Property
General Sales and Use
Selective Sales and Use
Gross Receipts Business
Occupancy

Penalties and Interest on Delinquent Taxes

Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental
Revenues from Utilities
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeits
Miscellaneous
Investment Earnings
Contributions

Total Revenues

Expenditures:

Current:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Health Services
Sanitation
Welfare
Culture and Recreation
Convention and Tourism
Urban Redevelopment and Housing
Education
Economic Development and Opportunity
Environmental

Capital Outlay

Debt Service:
Principal Retirement
Interest
Issuance Costs

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Issuance of Long-Term Debt
Refunding Debt Issued
Payments to Refunded Bond Escrow Agent
Premium on Long-Term Debt
Transfers In
Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses), Net
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances October 1

Fund Balances September 30

MAJOR FUNDS
CONVENTION
CENTER 2017 GENERAL NONMAJOR TOTAL
DEBT HOTELFINANCE ~ OBLIGATION  GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
GENERAL SERVICE PRE-K 4 SA CORP. BONDS FUNDS FUNDS
362,740 $ 221,587 $ -8 -8 -8 32,263 616,590
303,802 94,067 397,869
9,928 9,928
29,320 2,789 32,109
100,648 100,648
2,348 1,433 242 4,023
7,351 7,351
6,376 6,391 211,986 224,753
377,652 377,652
68,062 130,191 198,253
9,911 336 10,247
31,103 3,674 207 55,945 90,929
9,365 2,149 129 147 5,672 16,818 34,280
44 13,309 32,015 45,368
1,218,002 228,843 6,727 13,456 5,672 677,300 2,150,000
84,555 510 10,284 95,349
762,891 30,518 793,409
70,225 60,350 130,575
29,619 35,382 65,001
7,804 7,804
38,454 117,118 155,572
119,769 47,657 167,426
61,192 61,192
25,350 24,000 49,350
45,752 28,472 74,224
10,982 21,910 32,892
214 214
355,349 355,349
3,240 166,770 4,140 6,314 180,464
115 85,503 9,148 23,271 118,037
1,146 1,396 466 3,008
1,145,200 253,929 45,752 13,288 1,396 830,301 2,289,866
72,802 (25,086) (39,025) 168 4,276 (153,001) (139,866)
215,115 64,870 279,985
193,395 193,395
(221,348) (221,348)
29,293 35,764 8,850 73,907
22,754 18,066 37,411 427,317 505,548
(80,654) (96,509) (321,713) (498,876)
(57,900) 19,406 37,411 154,370 179,324 332,611
14,902 (5,680) (1,614) 168 158,646 26,323 192,745
350,140 38,146 8,740 6,271 226,016 664,555 1,293,868
365,042 _$ 32,466 _$ 7126 _$ 6439 _$ 384,662 _$ 690,878 1.486,613

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

Year-Ended September 30, 2019
(In Thousands)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:
Net change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of
Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceed depreciation in the
current year.

Expenditures for Capital Assets 334,885
Pollution Remediation Capitalization 142
Donated Capital Assets 3,045
Less: Current Year Depreciation (192,595)
Less: Current Year Deletions (22,544)

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources are not
reported as revenues in the fund financial statements.

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, notes and loans) provides current financial resources
to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the
current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect
on net position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of premiums, discounts and similar
items when debt is first issued. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the
treatment of long-term debt and related items.

Bond, Note and Loan Amounts Issued (473,380)
(Premium)/Discount on Long-term Debt (73,907)
Payments to Escrow Agent 221,348
Amortization of Bond Premiums/Discounts and Deferred Charges, Net 28,675
Principal Payments 180,464

The following expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds:

Interest Expense (2,283)
Accrued Leave Payable (4,401)
Net OPEB and Pension Expenses (128,451)
Pollution Remediation (180)
Principal Amounts on Leases 3,597
Other Expenses (5)

Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge the cost of certain activities to
individual funds. The change in net position remaining after allocation of business-type activities

of the Internal Service Funds is reported with governmental activities.

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.

S 192,745

122,933

4,816

(116,800)

(131,723)

(13,451)

S 58,520
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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
As of September 30, 2019

(In Thousands)

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES GOVERNMENTAL
ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES
SOLID NONMAIJOR INTERNAL
AIRPORT WASTE ENTERPRISE SERVICE
SYSTEM MANAGEMENT FUNDS TOTAL FUNDS
Assets:
Current Assets:
Unrestricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents S 2,817 S 1,553 3,194 7,564 S 18,899
Investments 29,407 19,173 31,086 79,666 174,316
Receivables, Net 3,720 10,558 269 14,547 1,212
Materials and Supplies, at Cost 891 34 131 1,056 2,664
Deposits 230
Prepaid Expenses 286 286 45
Due From Other Governmental Agencies, Net 70 70 1,262
Total Unrestricted Assets 36,905 31,318 34,966 103,189 198,628
Restricted Assets:
Debt Service Accounts:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 34,043 685 390 35,118 107
Investments 2,574 93 401 3,068
Receivables, Net 1 1
Construction Accounts:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,688 54 2,159 3,901
Investments 8,503 182 6,784 15,469
Prepaid Expenses 278 278
Receivables, Net 50 1 18 69
Improvement and Contingency Accounts:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 29,578 161 29,739
Investments 95,886 1,545 97,431
Receivables, Net 2,526 5 2,531
Other Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 52 52
Receivables, Net 1,174 1,174
Due From Other Governmental Agencies, Net 68 68
Total Restricted Assets 176,420 1,015 11,464 188,899 107
Total Current Assets 213,325 32,333 46,430 292,088 198,735
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets:
Land 5,323 1,107 9,366 15,796
Buildings 540,364 11,283 26,187 577,834 178
Improvements 581,990 9,529 14,276 605,795 514
Machinery and Equipment 29,735 30,851 13,217 73,803 276,100
Depreciable Intangible 352 352 250
Construction in Progress 19,225 4,042 23,267
Total Capital Assets 1,176,989 52,770 67,088 1,296,847 277,042
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 430,192 26,250 28,572 485,014 144,441
Net Capital Assets 746,797 26,520 38,516 811,833 132,601
Total Noncurrent Assets 746,797 26,520 38,516 811,833 132,601
Total Assets 960,122 58,853 84,946 1,103,921 331,336
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 16,655 14,449 9,321 40,425 25,569

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
As of September 30, 2019

(In Thousands)

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES GOVERNMENTAL
ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES
SOLID NONMAIOR INTERNAL
AIRPORT WASTE ENTERPRISE SERVICE
SYSTEM MANAGEMENT FUNDS TOTAL FUNDS
Liabilities:
Current Liabilities:
Payable from Current Unrestricted Assets:
Vouchers Payable S 4,985 S 2,177 S 482 S 7,644 S 18,916
Accounts Payable - Other 1,360 671 4,820 6,851 5,751
Claims Payable 22,297
Accrued Payroll 1,320 1,538 989 3,847 2,829
Accrued Interest 9 12 21 41
Current Portion of Accrued Leave Payable 2,102 1,765 1,125 4,992 3,712
Unearned Revenue 1,459 38 1,497
Current Portion of Capital Lease Liability 189 2,888 3,077
Current Portion of Landfill Postclosure Costs 201 201
Current Portion of Asset Retirement Obligations 8 8 175
Due To Other Funds 625
Due To Other Governmental Agencies 3 3
Total Payable from Current Unrestricted Assets 11,432 9,252 7,457 28,141 54,346
Payable from Current Restricted Assets:
Vouchers Payable 3,023 7 1,421 4,451
Accrued Interest 5,577 271 95 5,943
Current Portion of Bonds and Certificates (net of
premium/discount) 18,199 1,868 1,551 21,618 179
Other Payables 2,180 26 2,206
Total Payable from Current Restricted Assets 28,979 2,146 3,093 34,218 179
Total Current Liabilities 40,411 11,398 10,550 62,359 54,525
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Bonds and Certificates (net of current portion
& discount/premium) 441,664 36,855 12,710 491,229 5,025
Claims Payable (net of current portion) 33,048
Accrued Leave Payable (net of current portion) 922 563 24 1,509 1,177
Capital Lease Liability (net of current portion) 1,342 3,708 5,050
Net OPEB and Pension Liabilities 67,804 77,769 47,392 192,965 136,591
Pollution Remediation (net of current portion) 1,274 1,274
Asset Retirement Obligations (net of current portion) 306 306 567
Landfill Postclosure Costs (net of current portion) 842 842
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 513,312 119,737 60,126 693,175 176,408
Total Liabilities 553,723 131,135 70,676 755,534 230,933
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 3,370 3,244 1,896 8,510 4,983
Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 297,748 33,707 331,455 127,397
Restricted:
Debt Service 32,394 507 768 33,669 66
Capital Projects 128,719 7,593 136,312
Unrestricted (Deficit) (39,177) (61,584) (20,373) (121,134) (6,474)
Total Net Position $ 419684 _$ (61,077) _S 21695 S 380,302 S 120,989
Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds. (4,413)
Net position of business-type activities S 375,889

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Proprietary Funds

Year-Ended September 30, 2019
(In Thousands)

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES GOVERNMENTAL
ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES
SOLID NONMAIJOR INTERNAL
AIRPORT WASTE ENTERPRISE SERVICE
SYSTEM MANAGEMENT FUNDS TOTAL FUNDS
Operating Revenues:

Charges for Services S 104,298 S 133,212 S 47,737 285,247 S 347,933
Total Operating Revenues 104,298 133,212 47,737 285,247 347,933
Operating Expenses:

Personal Services 42,631 49,587 30,547 122,765 94,153

Contractual Services 17,064 34,341 4,892 56,297 46,236

Commodities 2,314 7,699 449 10,462 3,305

Materials 23,732

Claims 132,771

Other 9,698 26,957 7,566 44,221 49,645

Depreciation 39,570 3,929 3,483 46,982 29,757
Total Operating Expenses 111,277 122,513 46,937 280,727 379,599
Operating Income (Loss) (6,979) 10,699 800 4,520 (31,666)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):

Investment Earnings 5,164 471 970 6,605 5,402

Other Nonoperating Revenue 3,019 1,546 938 5,503 12,302

Gain on Sale of Capital Assets 124 36 160 3,254

Interest and Debt Expense (22,573) (1,258) (667) (24,498) (264)

Other Nonoperating Expense (12,178) (204) (2,532) (14,914)

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses), Net (26,444) 591 (1,291) (27,144) 20,694
Change in Net Position Before Capital Contributions

and Transfers (33,423) 11,290 (491) (22,624) (10,972)
Capital Contributions 47,296 47,296

Transfers In (Out):

Transfers In 642 4,261 4,903 663

Transfers Out (93) (3,394) (4,917) (8,404) (4,379)
Total Transfers In (Out), Net (93) (2,752) (656) (3,501) (3,716)
Change In Net Position 13,780 8,538 (1,147) 21,171 (14,688)
Net Position - October 1 (restated) 405,904 (69,615) 22,842 135,677
Net Position - September 30 S 419,684 $ (61,077) _S 21,695 S 120,989

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds. (1,237)
Change in Net Position of Business-Type Activities $ 19,934

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
Year-Ended September 30, 2019
(In Thousands)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash Received from Customers
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services
Cash Payments to Employees for Service
Cash Received from Other Cash Receipts

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Transfers In from Other Funds
Transfers Out to Other Funds
Due To Other Funds
Due From Other Funds

Net Cash (Used for) Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Acquisitions and Construction of Capital Assets
Contributed Capital
Debt Issuance Costs
Interest and Fees Paid on Long-Term Debt
Principal Payments on Long-Term Debt
Principal Payments on Notes and Leases
Proceeds from Issuance of Long-Term Debt
Proceeds from Sale of Assets

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Capital and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchases of Investment Securities
Maturity of Investment Securities
Investments Earnings

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Investing Activities
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, October 1

Cash and Cash Equivalents, September 30

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss)
to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation
Other Nonoperating Revenues
Changes in Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows of Resources
and Deferred Inflows of Resources:
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable
(Increase) Decrease in Due from Other Governmental Agencies
(Increase) in Materials and Supplies
(Increase) in Prepaid Expenses
Decrease in Deposits
Increase (Decrease) in Vouchers Payable
(Decrease) in Claims Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable - Other
Increase in Accrued Payroll
Increase in Accrued Leave Payable
(Decrease) in Landfill Postclosure Liability
Increase in Net OPEB Obligation and Pension Liability
Increase in Asset Retirement Obligations
(Increase) in Deferred Outflows of Resources
(Decrease) in Deferred Inflows of Resources
Increase (Decrease) in Unearned Revenue
Increase in Due to Other Governmental Agencies

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES GOVERNMENTAL
ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES
SOLID NONMAJOR INTERNAL
AIRPORT WASTE ENTERPRISE SERVICE
SYSTEM MANAGEMENT FUNDS TOTALS FUNDS
$ 107,000 $ 132,000 $ 47,907 S 286,907 $ 346,653
(28,466) (69,855) (12,786) (111,107) (247,959)
(36,428) (43,552) (26,855) (106,835) (83,957)
3,019 1,546 938 5,503 12,302
45,125 20,139 9,204 74,468 27,039
642 4,261 4,903 663
(93) (3,394) (4,917) (8,404) (4,379)
(196) (196) 625
1,149
(93) (2,948) (656) (3,697) (1,942)
(49,774) (2,734) (3,948) (56,456) (43,694)
47,296 47,296
(44) (44)
(22,747) (1,198) (634) (24,579) (236)
(15,847) (1,878) (1,141) (18,866) (173)
(8,629) (8,629)
7,398 7,398
16 77 93 5,862
(41,056) (14,362) 1,631 (53,787) (38,241)
(206,039) (19,448) (45,644) (271,131) (194,677)
202,230 15,859 36,567 254,656 199,760
5,026 436 948 6,410 5,273
1,217 (3,153) (8,129) (10,065) 10,356
5,193 (324) 2,050 6,919 (2,788)
62,985 2,616 3,854 69,455 21,794
S 68,178 S 2,292 S 5904 76374 S 19,006
$ (6,979) $ 10,699 $ 800 S 4520 S (31,666)
39,570 3,929 3,483 46,982 29,757
3,019 1,546 938 5,503 12,302
2,153 (1,212) 165 1,106 (504)
3 3 (701)
(37) (10) (67) (114) (553)
(236) (236) (44)
136
297 (26) 37 308 9,630
(5,205)
85 (744) 374 (285) 3,900
160 189 167 516 397
112 43 26 181 256
(78) (78)
18,051 20,413 12,354 50,818 34,581
265 265
(9,542) (12,022) (7,259) (28,823) (20,190)
(2,578) (2,588) (1,596) (6,762) (4,845)
546 15 561 (212)
3 3
S 45125 S 20,139 _S 9204 _$ 74,468 _$ 27,039

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position/Balance Sheet

Fiduciary Funds
As of September 30, 2019

(In Thousands)

PENSION AND
HEALTH CARE AGENCY
FUNDS FUNDS
Assets:
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents S 64,891 S 3,448
Security Lending Collateral 95,325
Investments:
Common Stock 1,131,214
U.S. Government Securities 64,394 4,563
Corporate Bonds 323,335
Foreign Bonds 247,994
Mutual Funds 79,538
Hedge Funds 481,325
Real Estate 279,853
Alternative 705,538
Receivables:
Accounts 8,165 94
Accrued Interest 5,256 13
Accrued Revenue 6,098
Prepaid Expenses 15
Total Current Assets 3,492,941 8,118
Capital Assets:
Machinery and Equipment 618
Buildings 1,616
Total Capital Assets 2,234
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 1,059
Net Capital Assets 1,175
Total Assets S 3,494,116 _S 8,118
Liabilities:
Vouchers Payable S 5,239 S 10
Accounts Payable - Other 9,609 7,479
Claims Payable 3,809
Accrued Payroll 280
Due to Other Funds 629
Securities Lending Obligation 95,325
Total Liabilities 114,262 _S 8,118
Net Position:
Restricted for Pension 3,015,157
Restricted for Other Postemployment Benefits 364,697
Total Net Position S 3,379,854

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
Year-Ended September 30, 2019
(In Thousands)

Additions:
Contributions:
Employer
Employee
Other Contributions

Total Contributions

Investment Earning (Loss):
Net (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments
Real Estate Income, Net
Interest and Dividends
Securities Lending
Other Income

Total Investment Earnings
Less: Investment Expenses
Investment Management Fees and Custodian Fees
Less: Securities Lending Expenses
Borrower Rebates and Lending Fees

Net Investment Earnings
Total Additions

Deductions:
Benefits
Refunds of Contributions
Administrative Expense

Total Deductions
Change in Net Position
Net Position - Beginning of Fiscal Year

Net Position - End of Fiscal Year

PENSION AND
HEALTH CARE
FUNDS

117,399
56,353
1,817

175,569

(192,954)
6,871
57,208
2,029
393

(126,453)
(15,879)

(1,654)

(143,986)

31,583

214,345
918
9,072

224,335

(192,752)
3,572,606

S 3,379,854

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Statement of Net Position
Discretely Presented Component Units
As of September 30, 2019
(In Thousands)
SAN ANTONIO  NONMAIJOR

CPS WATER COMPONENT
ENERGY SYSTEM UNITS TOTAL
Assets:
Current Assets:
Unrestricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents S 349,704 S 58,064 S 22,080 S 429,848
Investments 104,171 436,823 25,253 566,247
Receivables, Net 255,875 73,274 7,110 336,259
Materials and Supplies, at Cost 154,887 5,823 54 160,764
Due from Other Governmental Agencies 999 999
Prepaid Expenses 55,523 4,673 28,055 88,251
Other Assets 1,487 1,487
Total Unrestricted Assets 920,160 578,657 85,038 1,583,855
Restricted Assets:
Debt Service Accounts:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 13,046 16,473 22,114 51,633
Investments 149,180 8,847 158,027
Receivables, Net 85 85
Capital Projects Accounts:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 54,233 53,719 107,952
Investments 253,156 253,156
Ordinance Accounts:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 143,285 143,285
Investments 559,375 559,375
Other Restricted Accounts:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 23,762 1,734 13,022 38,518
Investments 547,859 56,642 604,501
Receivables, Net 5,753 736 6,489
Deferred Charges 60,147 60,147
Total Restricted Assets 1,347,313 530,904 104,951 1,983,168
Total Current Assets 2,267,473 1,109,561 189,989 3,567,023
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets:
Land 104,991 113,123 86,279 304,393
Depreciable Intangible Assets 298,092 1,354 299,446
Infrastructure 122,955 122,955
Buildings 375,537 375,537
Utility Plant in Service 12,825,170 6,089,425 18,914,595
Machinery and Equipment 389,082 19,725 408,807
Construction in Progress 580,984 506,810 51,835 1,139,629
Water Rights and Other Non-Depreciable Intangible Assets 107,531 249,251 356,782
Nuclear Fuel 1,001,284 1,001,284
Total Capital Assets 14,918,052 7,349,045 656,331 22,923,428
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 6,763,382 2,082,961 211,782 9,058,125
Net Capital Assets 8,154,670 5,266,084 444,549 13,865,303
Other Noncurrent Assets:
Receivables, Net 3,592 3,592
Prepaid Expenses 162,638 162,638
Pension Regulatory Asset 239,806 239,806
Other Noncurrent Assets 299,927 299,927
Total Other Noncurrent Assets 539,733 166,230 705,963
Total Noncurrent Assets 8,694,403 5,266,084 610,779 14,571,266
Total Assets 10,961,876 6,375,645 800,768 18,138,289
Deferred Outflows of Resources 731,136 84,791 2,420 818,347

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Statement of Net Position
Discretely Presented Component Units
As of September 30, 2019
(In Thousands)
SAN ANTONIO  NONMAIJOR

CPS WATER COMPONENT
ENERGY SYSTEM UNITS TOTAL
Liabilities:
Current Liabilities:
Payable from Current Unrestricted Assets:
Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities S 389,746 S 69,374 S 18,680 S 477,800
Unearned Revenues 2,646 2,646
Current Portion of Long-Term Lease/Notes Payable 11,250 11,250
Current Portion of Other Payables 51,067 8,197 59,264
Total Payable from Current Unrestricted Assets 440,813 77,571 32,576 550,960
Payable from Restricted Assets:
Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities 41,841 335 42,176
Accrued Interest on Bonds and Certificates 16,153 7,544 23,697
Current Portion of Bonds and Certificates 136,720 87,060 34,900 258,680
Current Portion of Commercial Paper 3,880 3,880
Other Payables 40,609 40,609
Total Payable from Restricted Assets 136,720 148,934 83,388 369,042
Total Current Liabilities 577,533 226,505 115,964 920,002
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Bonds and Certificates (net of current portion
& premium/discount) 5,690,297 2,747,510 353,738 8,791,545
Commercial Paper (net of current portion) 205,000 211,815 416,815
Asset Retirement Obligations 1,004,350 1,004,350
Long-Term Lease/Notes Payable (net of current portion) 95,185 95,185
Net OPEB and Pension Liabilities 255,869 127,099 382,968
Other Payables (net of current portion) 272,578 16,837 3,724 293,139
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 7,428,094 3,103,261 452,647 10,984,002
Total Liabilities 8,005,627 3,329,766 568,611 11,904,004
Deferred Inflows of Resources 173,358 23,847 197,205
Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 2,123,616 2,353,841 232,939 4,710,396
Restricted for:
Debt Service 11,921 118,788 130,709
Capital Projects 766,708 209,204 267 976,179
Operating and Other Reserves 56,642 2,690 59,332
Unrestricted 611,782 368,348 (1,319) 978,811
Total Net Position S 3,514,027 S 3,106,823 S 234,577 S 6,855,427

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Statement of Activities

Discretely Presented Component Units

Year-Ended September 30, 2019

(In Thousands)

NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE

PROGRAM REVENUES

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

OPERATING CAPITAL SAN ANTONIO NONMAIJOR
CHARGES FOR GRANTS AND GRANTS AND CPS WATER COMPONENT
EXPENSES SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS ENERGY SYSTEM UNITS TOTALS
CPS Energy S 2,608,031 S 2,744,159 S - S 54,936 S 191,064 - S - S 191,064
San Antonio Water System 589,613 691,046 145,990 247,423 247,423
Nonmajor Component Units 131,554 114,541 1,150 8,739 (7,124) (7,124)
Total S 3,329,198 S 3,549,746 _$ 1,150 S 209,665 191,064 247,423 (7,124) 431,363
General Revenues:
Investment Earnings 20,267 22,488 2,624 45,379
Miscellaneous 6,022 6,022
Gain on Disposal of Capital Assets 924 924
Adjustment for STP Pension Cost (8,145) (8,145)
Special Items (182,723) (182,723)
Total General Revenues and Special Items (170,601) 23,412 8,646 (138,543)
Change in Net Position 20,463 270,835 1,522 292,820
Net Position - Beginning of Fiscal Year (restated) 3,493,564 2,835,988 233,055 6,562,607
Net Position - End of Fiscal Year S 3,514,027 3,106,823 S 234577 S 6,855,427

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the City of San Antonio (the City) have been prepared in conformity with U.S. Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) for local governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is the accepted body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting standards. The
following is a summary of significant accounting policies of the City.

Reporting Entity

In the evaluation of how to define the City for financial reporting purposes, management considered all potential
component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting entity was made by applying
the criteria set forth in GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus — an amendment of
GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34. The underlying concept of the Statement is improving guidance for including,
presenting, and disclosing information about component units and equity interest transactions of a financial
reporting entity.

The financial reporting entity consists of: (a) the primary government (in these financial statements the primary
government is the City), (b) component units, which are legally separate organizations for which the City is
financially accountable or the services rendered by the component unit are provided entirely or almost entirely to
the City (blended), (c) component units, which are fiduciary in nature such as certain public employee retirement
systems or pension trust funds with the City (fiduciary), and (d) component units, the nature and significance of
their relationship with the City is such that exclusion from the reporting entity’s financial statements would be
misleading or incomplete (discretely presented).

Using the criteria of GASB Statement No. 61 outlined below, potential component units were evaluated for
inclusion in or exclusion from the reporting entity, whether the organizations were financially accountable or not,
and were further evaluated for financial statement presentation. Based on their individual relationships with the
City, some component unit financial statements were blended as though they are part of the City and others were
discretely presented.

GASB Statement No. 80, Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units — an amendment of GASB Statement
No. 14 was issued in January 2016, and it established an additional criterion for determining whether or not a
potential component unit should be blended. If a component unit is a not-for-profit corporation in which the
primary government is the sole corporate member as identified in the corporation’s articles of incorporation or
bylaws, the component unit’s financial statements are to be blended.

The following criteria (as set forth in GASB Statement No. 61) were used in the evaluation of potential component
units of the City:

1) Legally separate

2) Financial accountability
a) Appointment of a voting majority
b) Imposition of will
c) Financial benefit to or burden on the City
d) Fiscal dependency with financial benefit to or burden on the City

3) The relationship with the City is such that exclusion would cause these financial statements to be misleading or
incomplete

4) Service rendered by the potential component unit is provided entirely or almost entirely to the City

5) The City or its component units are entitled to, or have the ability to access the majority of the resources
received or held by the separate organization.

Year-Ended September 30, 2019 -27 - Amounts are expressed in thousands



Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Reporting Entity (Continued)

The criteria outlined on the previous page were excerpted from GASB Statement No. 61. For a more detailed
explanation of the criteria established by the Statements, refer to the Codification of Governmental Accounting
and Financial Reporting Standards, as of June 30, 2019, published by GASB, Section-2600. GASB Statement No. 39,
Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Units, further clarifies that a “not-for-profit” may not
be financially accountable to the City, but may be considered a component unit based on the nature and
significance of its relationship with the City. Predicated upon the application of the criteria outlined above, the
following is a brief overview of component units included in the reporting entity.

Blended Component Units

The relationships among the following component units and the City meet the criteria, as set forth in GASB
Statement No. 61, for inclusion in the reporting entity and are such that the financial statements are blended with
those of the City.

Following is a brief description of the City’s blended component units:

Convention Center Hotel The Convention Center Hotel Finance Corporation (CCHFC) was

Finance Corporation
P.O. Box 839966
San Antonio, TX 78283-3966
Contact: Margaret U. Villegas
Telephone No. (210) 207-8632

Hemisfair Park Area
Redevelopment Corporation
630 E. Nueva St.

San Antonio, TX 78205
Contact: Omar Gonzalez
Telephone No. (210) 709-4750

Municipal Golf Association -
San Antonio DBA Alamo City
Golf Trail
2315 Avenue B
San Antonio, TX 78215
Contact: Joe Nunez
Telephone No. (210) 908-5921

established in fiscal year 2005 in accordance with state laws for the
purposes of, and to act on behalf of the City in, local economic
development to stimulate business and commercial activity in the City.
The CCHFC is governed by a board of directors, which is comprised of the
City Council of San Antonio (City Council). CCHFC’s governing board is the
same as the City’s governing board, met the financial benefit/burden
criteria, and also met the operational responsibility criteria.

The Hemisfair Park Area Redevelopment Corporation (HPARC) was
established in fiscal year 2009 in accordance with state laws for the
purposes of, and to act on behalf of the City in, assisting with acquiring
property, planning, developing, constructing, managing and financing
projects within Hemisfair Park and its surrounding area in order to
promote economic development, employment, and to stimulate business,
housing, tourism, and commercial activity within the City. The HPARC is
governed by 11 members appointed by the City Council and it provides
services entirely to the City. The City has the ability to impose its will.

Municipal Golf Association — San Antonio DBA Alamo City Golf Trail (MGA-
SA) was established in fiscal year 2007 in accordance with state laws for the
purposes of, and to act on behalf of the City in, operating and promoting
the City’s municipal golf facilities. MGA-SA is governed by a 15 member
board of directors, which is comprised of seven members selected by MGA-
SA according to the approved process contained in its by-laws; two ex-
officio member positions from City staff who are appointed by the City
Manager; and six members appointed by the City Council. MGA-SA
provides services entirely to the City and met the fiscal dependency and
financial benefit/burden criteria.

Year-Ended September 30, 2019
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Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Blended Component Units (Continued)

San Antonio Early Childhood
Education Municipal
Development Corporation DBA
Pre-K 4 SA
7031 S. New Braunfels Ave.
San Antonio, TX 78223
Contact: Dr. Sarah Baray
Telephone No. (210) 206-2750

San Antonio Economic
Development Corporation
100 W. Houston St., 19" Floor
San Antonio, TX 78205
Contact: Alejandra Lopez
Telephone No. (210) 207-8080

San Antonio Education
Facilities Corporation
100 W. Houston St., 19" Floor
San Antonio, TX 78205
Contact: Alejandra Lopez
Telephone No. (210) 207-8080

San Antonio Health Facilities
Development Corporation
100 W. Houston St., 19" Floor
San Antonio, TX 78205
Contact: Alejandra Lopez
Telephone No. (210) 207-8080

The San Antonio Early Childhood Education Municipal Development
Corporation DBA Pre-K 4 SA was established in fiscal year 2012 in
accordance with state laws for the purpose of, and to act on behalf of the
City, in developing and running authorized programs for early childhood
education services. Pre-K 4 SA is governed by a board of trustees
appointed by the City Council. Pre-K 4 SA’s debt, including leases, is
expected to be repaid almost entirely with the resources of the City, a 1/8
cent sales tax increase approved by San Antonio residents. The City has
the ability to impose its will.

The San Antonio Economic Development Corporation (EDC) was
established in fiscal year 2010 as a nonprofit corporation to promote, assist,
and enhance economic development activities for the City. EDC was
organized for the purposes of undertaking any statute-authorized projects
to benefit and accomplish the public purpose of promoting economic
development in the City. The affairs of EDC are managed by a board of
directors appointed by the City Council. The City Council may remove a
director at any time without cause. EDC's budget is not effective until
approved by the City Council. EDC provides services entirely to the City, as
contracts or agreements cannot be executed without City Council approval.
EDC met the fiscal dependency and financial benefit/burden criteria, and
the City has the ability to impose its will.

The San Antonio Education Facilities Corporation (EFC), formerly the City of
San Antonio Higher Education Authority, was established in 1984 in
accordance with state laws for the purpose of aiding nonprofit institutions
of higher education in providing educational, housing, and other related
facilities in accordance with, and subject to, the provisions of Section 53.35
(b) Texas Education Code (the Code), all to be done on behalf of the City
and its duly constituted authority and instrumentality. The Code authorizes
EFC to issue revenue bonds, for which the City is not obligated in any
manner, to finance qualified projects that meet the purpose of the Code.
The EFC is governed by a board of directors, which is comprised of the City
Council. EFC met the financial benefit/burden and operational responsibility
criteria, and the City has the ability to impose its will.

The San Antonio Health Facilities Development Corporation (HFDC) was
established by Ordinance No. 55400, dated June 3, 1982, in accordance
with state laws for the purposes of, and to act on behalf of the City as, a
corporation under the Texas Health Facilities Development Act of 1981. The
HFDC is authorized to issue tax-exempt health facility revenue bonds, for
which the City is not obligated in any manner, to finance health related
projects in support of the promotion, expansion, and improvement of
health facilities. The HFDC is governed by a board of directors, which is
comprised of the City Council. HFDC met the financial benefit/burden and
operational responsibility criteria, and the City has the ability to impose its
will.

Year-Ended September 30, 2019
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Blended Component Units (Continued)

San Antonio Industrial
Development Authority
100 W. Houston St., 19" Floor
San Antonio, TX 78205
Contact: Alejandra Lopez
Telephone No. (210) 207-8080

San Antonio Texas Municipal
Facilities Corporation
P.O. Box 839966
San Antonio, TX 78283-3966
Contact: Margaret U. Villegas
Telephone No. (210) 207-8632

Starbright
Industrial Development
Corporation
P.O. Box 839966
San Antonio, TX 78283-3966
Contact: Margaret U. Villegas
Telephone No. (210) 207-8632

Texas Public Facilities
Corporation
P.O. Box 839966
San Antonio, TX 78283-3966
Contact: Margaret U. Villegas
Telephone No. (210) 207-8632

The San Antonio Industrial Development Authority (IDA) was established
by Resolution No. 79-48-100, dated October 11, 1979, in accordance with
state laws for the purposes of benefiting and accomplishing public
purposes of, and to act on behalf of the City as, a corporation under the
Development Corporation Act of 1979. The IDA is authorized to issue tax-
exempt industrial revenue bonds, for which the City is not obligated in
any manner, to finance qualified projects, which may further the
promotion and development of commercial, industrial, and
manufacturing enterprises to advance and encourage employment and
public welfare. The IDA is governed by a board of directors, which is
comprised of the City Council. IDA met the financial benefit/burden and
operational responsibility criteria, and the City has the ability to impose
its will.

The San Antonio Texas Municipal Facilities Corporation (TMFC) was
established in fiscal year 2001 in accordance with state laws for the
purposes of, and to act on behalf of the City in, acquiring, constructing,
equipping, financing, operating, and maintaining land and other municipal
facilities for the City. The TMFC is governed by a board of directors, which
is comprised of the City Council. The City can impose its will, and TMFC
also meets the operational responsibility criteria.

The Starbright Industrial Development Corporation (SIDC) was established
in fiscal year 2003 in accordance with state laws for the purposes of, and
to act on behalf of the City in, the promotion and development of
commercial, industrial, and manufacturing enterprises, to advance and
encourage employment and public welfare, including but not limited to
the acquisition of land. The SIDC is governed by a board of directors,
which is comprised of the City Council. SIDC’s governing board is the same
as the City’s governing board, SIDC met the financial benefit/burden and
the operational responsibility criteria. The City has the ability to impose
its will.

Texas Public Facilities Corporation (TPFC) was established in fiscal year
2012 in accordance with state laws for the purpose of, and to act on
behalf of the City in, effectuating the buyout of the City’s existing Hotel
Revenue Bonds and funding for the expansion of the City’s Convention
Center through issuance of 2012 Lease Revenue Bonds. The TPFC is
governed by a board of directors, which is comprised of the City Council.
TPFC’s governing board is substantially the same as the City’s governing
board, and TPFC meets the operational responsibility criteria. The City has
the ability to impose its will.

Year-Ended September 30, 2019
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Blended Component Units (Continued)

Urban Renewal Agency of the
City of San Antonio DBA Office
of Urban Redevelopment of San
Antonio
c/o City of San Antonio
1400S. Flores
San Antonio, TX 78205
Contact: Veronica R. Soto
Telephone No. (210) 207-6459

Visit San Antonio
203 S. St. Mary’s Street, Ste. 200
San Antonio, TX 78205
Contact: Natalie Balderrama
Telephone No. (210) 244-2099

Westside Development
Corporation
630 S.W. 41* Street
San Antonio, TX 78237
Contact: Leonard Rodriguez
Telephone No. (210) 501-0192

The Urban Renewal Agency of the City of San Antonio DBA Office of Urban
Redevelopment of San Antonio (OUR SA) was created under the provisions
of the Urban Renewal Law of the State of Texas. OUR SA is responsible for
implementing the City’s Urban Renewal Program and may designate for
urban renewal in such areas as it deems advisable, subject to approval by
the City Council. OUR SA receives a majority of its operating funds from the
City. OUR SA is governed by a six-member board of commissioners
appointed by the City Council. OUR SA provides services entirely to the City
and has met the fiscal dependency and financial benefit/burden criteria.

Visit San Antonio (VSA) was established in fiscal year 2016 in accordance
with state laws for the purposes of providing destination and marketing
services, attracting leisure visitors, events and conventions to the City’s
Henry B. Gonzalez Convention Center and other owned facilities. VSA will
also serve as a liaison to local businesses, including hoteliers, sports
foundations, and other similar entities to attract visitors and events to the
City. VSA has a 21 member board, of which the City Manager and two
Council members are appointed by the Mayor. VSA provides services
almost entirely to the City and meets the fiscal dependency and financial
benefit/burden criteria.

Westside Development Corporation (WDC) was established in fiscal year
2006 in accordance with state laws for the purposes of promoting
economic development and redevelopment opportunities in the west side
of San Antonio. WDC seeks to generate new capital investment, create
higher paying jobs, and reduce the poverty level in the area. In addition,
WNDC functions as a land development corporation that has the power to
buy, sell, and accept land as a nonprofit without the restrictions placed
upon a municipality. WDC is governed by a board of directors nominated
by a City Council committee and appointed by the City Council. The policy-
setting oversight authority consists of 17 members, comprised of
representatives of key stakeholders and Westside advocates. WDC
provides services entirely to the City. The City has the ability to impose its
will, and WDC has met the financial benefit/burden criteria.

The blended component unit with a different fiscal year-end from the City is Pre-K 4 SA with a fiscal year-end of
June 30™. The financial data disclosed in the City’s financial statements for WDC is as of fiscal year 2018, as the City
has not received their fiscal year 2019 audited financial statements.
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fiduciary Component Units

The relationships among the following component units and the City meet the criteria, as set forth in GASB
Statement No. 61, for inclusion in the reporting entity and are such that the financial statements are presented as
fiduciary funds of the City.

As set forth in GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements—and Management's Discussion and Analysis—
for State and Local Governments, the City excludes fiduciary funds and component units that are fiduciary in nature
from the government-wide financial statements. The City’s component units that are fiduciary in nature are the
San Antonio Fire and Police Pension Fund and the San Antonio Fire and Police Retiree Health Care Fund. These
component units are presented in the Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and Changes in Fiduciary Net Position.

San Antonio Fire and Police The San Antonio Fire and Police Pension Fund (Pension Fund) is a single
Pension Fund employer defined benefit plan established in accordance with state law.

11603 W. Coker Loop, Ste. 201 The Pension Fund is administered by a nine-member board of trustees,
San Antonio, TX 78216 including two members of the City Council, the Mayor or his appointee, two
Contact: Warren Schott active police officers, two active firefighters, and two uniformed retirees.

Telephone No. (210) 534-3262 The City and its active uniformed personnel are obligated to make all
contributions to the Pension Fund in accordance with rates established by
state laws. Benefit levels are also set by state laws. Services rendered by the
Pension Fund are exclusively for the benefit of eligible firefighters and
police officers, upon retirement. The Pension Fund provides services
entirely to the City’s active and retired uniformed personnel.

San Antonio Fire and Police The City of San Antonio Firefighters’ and Police Officers’ Retiree Prefunded
Retiree Health Care Fund Group Health Plan was created in October 1989 in accordance with the
11603 W. Coker Loop, Ste. 130 provisions of the City’s contracts with the local fire and police unions,
San Antonio, TX 78216 respectively, to provide post-employment health care benefits to
Contact: James Bounds uniformed employees who retired on or after October 1, 1989. Pursuant to

Telephone No. (210) 494-6500 the passage of Senate Bill 1568 in 1997, a separate and distinct statutory
trust, the San Antonio Fire and Police Retiree Health Care Fund (Health
Fund), was created to provide these post-employment health care benefits
for eligible uniformed employees of the City. The Health Fund is
administered by a nine-member board of trustees, including two members
of the City Council, the Mayor or his appointee, two active police officers,
two active firefighters, and two uniformed retirees. The City, active uniform
employees, and retirees on behalf of their dependents are obligated to
make all contributions to the Health Fund in accordance with rates
established by state laws. Benefits are established pursuant to legislation
enacted by the State with the Health Fund Board’s ability to modify those
benefits within certain parameters. The Health Fund provides services
entirely to the City’s active and retired uniformed personnel.

It is management’s belief that to exclude essential disclosures from the City’s financial statements as they pertain
to the Pension Fund and Health Fund would be misleading. Therefore, relevant disclosures have been included in
the City’s financial statements.

The Pension Fund and Health Fund’s fiscal year-end is December 31%; financial information disclosed in the City’s
CAFR for both entities is as of December 31, 2018.
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Discretely Presented Component Units

The relationship among the following component units and the City is such that they meet the criteria, as set forth
in GASB Statement No. 61, for inclusion in the reporting entity as discretely presented component units.

Brooks
3201 Sidney Brooks
San Antonio, TX 78235-5355
Contact: Eric Greer
Telephone No. (210) 678-3319

CPS Energy
P.0.Box 1771
San Antonio, TX 78296-1771
Contact: Julie Johnson
Telephone No. (210) 353-2462

Port Authority of San Antonio
DBA Port San Antonio
907 Billy Mitchell Blvd.
San Antonio, TX 78226

Contact: Teresa Alexander

Telephone No. (210) 362-7834

SA Energy Acquisition Public
Facility Corporation
P.0.Box 1771
San Antonio, TX 78296-1771
Contact: Julie Johnson
Telephone No. (210) 353-2462

Brooks is a special district and political subdivision of the State of Texas. It
was established on September 27, 2001 as a defense base development
authority in accordance with state laws for the purposes of, and to act on
behalf of the City in, improving mission effectiveness, reducing the cost of
providing quality installation support through improved capital asset
management, and promoting economic development for Brooks Air Force
Base and in the surrounding community. An 11 member board of directors
appointed by the City Council governs Brooks for two-year terms and
oversees the Brooks Technology and Business Park in support of the Brooks
City-Base Project. The City’s ability to impose its will on Brooks is through
City Council having the power to remove board members.

CPS Energy, a municipally owned utility, provides electricity and natural gas
to San Antonio and the surrounding areas. CPS Energy is governed by a
board of trustees, which is comprised of four members appointed by City
Council and has the City’s Mayor as an ex-officio member. The City has the
ability to impose its will on CPS Energy through the setting of user rates for
services and charges and the issuance of bonds approved by the City
Council.

The Port Authority of San Antonio DBA Port San Antonio (the Port) is a
special district and political subdivision of the State of Texas that was
originally established in 1996 as a local development authority under the
Development Corp Act of 1979 for the purpose of monitoring the proposed
closing of Kelly Air Force Base (Kelly). The Port was to conduct
comprehensive studies of all issues related to the closure, conversion,
redevelopment, and future use of Kelly, and submit and implement the
plan to the appropriate agency or agencies of the federal government. The
Port is authorized to issue bonds, for which the City is not obligated in any
manner, to finance projects as permitted by state laws. The Port is
governed by an 11 member board of directors, appointed at will by City
Council.

SA Energy Acquisition Public Facility Corporation (SAEAPFC) was established
in 2007 in accordance with state laws for the purposes of, and to act on
behalf of the City in, the financing and acquisition of electric energy and
power, oil, gas, coal and other liquid, gaseous or solid hydrocarbon fuels for
the electric and gas systems of the City. SAEAPFC is governed by a seven-
member board of directors appointed by City Council for two-year terms.
Board members are subject to removal by City Council for cause or at will.
The issuance of bonds is approved by City Council.

Year-Ended September 30, 2019
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Discretely Presented Component Units (Continued)

San Antonio Bexar County
Soccer Public Facility
Corporation
100 Military Plaza
San Antonio, TX 78205
Contact: Patricia Muzquiz Cantor
Telephone No. (210) 207-6556

San Antonio Housing Trust
Finance Corporation
2515 Blanco Rd.

San Antonio, TX 78212
Contact: Pedro Alanis
Telephone No. (210) 207-3908

San Antonio Housing Trust
Foundation, Inc.
2515 Blanco Rd.
San Antonio, TX 78212
Contact: Pedro Alanis
Telephone No. (210) 207-3908

San Antonio Housing Trust
Public Facility Corporation
2515 Blanco Rd.

San Antonio, TX 78212
Contact: Pedro Alanis
Telephone No. (210) 207-3908

San Antonio Housing Trust
Reinvestment Corporation
2515 Blanco Rd.

San Antonio, TX 78212
Contact: Pedro Alanis
Telephone No. (210) 207-3908

San Antonio Bexar County Soccer Public Facility Corporation (SABC PFC) is a
nonprofit corporation established in fiscal year 2016 in accordance with
state laws for the purposes of, and to act on behalf of the City in, the
renovation and operation of a facility and related property and
infrastructure to be used for and to support professional soccer within the
City. SABC PFC is governed by a four-member board of directors comprised
of two appointees from the City and two from the County.

The San Antonio Housing Trust Finance Corporation (HTFC) was established
in 1997 under the Texas Housing Finance Corporations Act (the Act), in
accordance with state laws for the purposes of, and to act on behalf of the
City in, carrying out the purposes of the Act, including the issuance of single
family and multi-family revenue bonds. HTFC's board of directors is
appointed by City Council and consists of five City Council members.

San Antonio Housing Trust Foundation, Inc. (HTF) is a nonprofit entity
incorporated in 1990 under the laws of the State of Texas. HTF was
organized for the purposes of supporting charitable, educational, and
scientific undertakings, and specifically for providing housing for low- and
middle-income families, promoting public health, safety, convenience, and
welfare, revitalizing neighborhoods and the downtown area through
appropriate housing activities, and providing administrative and other
support for the operations of the City of San Antonio Housing Trust Fund, a
Special Revenue Fund of the City. HTF is governed by an 11 member board
of directors appointed by City Council.

San Antonio Housing Trust Public Facility Corporation (HTPFC) was
established in fiscal year 2010 as a nonprofit corporation organized for the
purpose of assisting the City in financing, refinancing, or providing public
facilities. HTPFC enables housing resources to be better coordinated and
directed to accomplish the City’s revitalization goals and gives the City
another tool to establish housing in downtown and other areas targeted for
development. HTPFC’s board of directors is appointed by City Council and
consists of five City Council members.

San Antonio Housing Trust Reinvestment Corporation (HTRC) was created
to act as a duly constituted authority of the City and is authorized by the
City Council to aid, assist, and act on behalf of the City to promote for the
common good and general welfare of reinvestment zones. As HTRC had no
activity through September 30" an audit is not deemed necessary in fiscal
year 2019.

Year-Ended September 30, 2019
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Discretely Presented Component Units (Continued)

San Antonio Tricentennial The San Antonio Tricentennial Celebration Commission (Commission) was a
Celebration Commission public nonprofit local government entity incorporated in 2015. The
P.O. Box 839966 Commission was organized for the purpose of aiding and acting on behalf

San Antonio, TX 78283-3966 of the City to provide a means of assisting with the planning, developing,
Contact: Melanie Keeton identifying potential partners, fundraising, managing, and financing of

Telephone No. (210) 207-8090 projects involved with the City’s 300" anniversary celebration in 2018. All
powers of the Commission was vested in the Board of Directors. The Board
consisted of not less than three nor more than 19 persons, provided that
five came at the recommendation of the Bexar County Commissioners
Court with the remainder of the Board chosen by City Council.
Tricentennial ceased operations in fiscal year 2019.

San Antonio Water System On May 19, 1992, the consolidation of water systems, agencies and
P.O. Box 2449 activities into one institution through a refunding of the then outstanding

San Antonio, TX 78298-2449 water and sewer bonds of the former City Water Board, Alamo Water
Contact: Doug Evanson Conservation and Re-Use District, and the City’s Sewer and Stormwater

Telephone No. (210) 233-3803 System, resulted in the creation of the San Antonio Water System (SAWS).
The City Council determined that the interests of the citizens and the
customers would best be served by placing authority for management and
control of SAWS, as consolidated, with a board of trustees. This board of
trustees includes the City’s Mayor as an ex-officio member, along with six
members appointed by City Council for four-year staggered terms. The
rates for user charges and bond issuance authorizations are approved by
City Council.

It is management’s belief that to exclude essential disclosures from the City’s financial statements as they pertain
to CPS Energy and SAWS would be misleading. CPS Energy and SAWS have been identified as major discretely
presented component units as they both relate to total component units and to the primary government.
Therefore, relevant disclosures have been included in the City’s financial statements.

SAWS’ fiscal year-end is December 31, 2018; while CPS Energy’s and SA Energy Acquisition Public Facility
Corporation’s fiscal year-end is January 31, 2019. The Commission ceased operations and issued stub period
financials ending August 1, 2019.

Essential disclosures related to the previously mentioned discretely presented, fiduciary, and blended component
units are included in the complete financial statements of each of the individual component units. These

statements may be obtained at the respective entity’s administrative office.

Related Organizations

The City Council appoints members to the board of commissioners for the Housing Authority of the City of San
Antonio (SAHA). However, the City’s accountability for this entity does not extend beyond making appointments to
its board and the coordination and approval of strategic plans.
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basic Financial Statements - GASB Statement No. 34

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements — The basic financial statements include three components:
(1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the financial
statements. The government-wide financial statements report information on all non-fiduciary activities of the
primary government and its component units. MD&A introduces the basic financial statements and provides an
analytical overview of the City’s financial activities. Additionally, the effect of interfund activity has been
removed from the statements.

The Statement of Net Position — Reflects both short-term and long-term assets and liabilities as well as deferred
inflows and outflows of resources. In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, governmental activities are
reported separately from business-type activities. Governmental activities are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, whereas business-type activities are normally supported by user fees and charges for
services. Long-term assets, such as capital assets, long-term obligations, such as debt, and any deferred inflows and
outflows of resources are now reported in the governmental activities. The components of Net Position are
presented in three separate categories: (1) net investment in capital assets, (2) restricted, and (3) unrestricted.
Interfund receivables and payables within governmental and business-type activities have been eliminated in the
government-wide Statement of Net Position, which minimizes the duplication within the governmental and
business-type activities. The net amount of interfund transfers between governmental and proprietary funds is the
balance reported in the Statement of Net Position. Discretely presented component units are also reported in the
Statement of Net Position.

The Statement of Activities — Reflects both the gross and net cost format. The net cost (by function or business-
type activity) is usually covered by general revenues (property tax, sales and use tax, revenues from utilities,
etc.). Direct (gross) expenses of a given function or segment are offset by charges for services, operating and
capital grants and contributions. Program revenues must be directly associated with the function of program
activity. The presentation allows users to determine which functions are self-supporting and which rely on the
tax base in order to complete their mission. Internal Service Fund balances, whether positive or negative, have
been eliminated against the expenses and program revenues shown in the governmental and business-type
activities of the Statement of Activities.

Fund Accounting

A reconciliation detailing the change in net position between the government-wide financial statements and the
fund financial statements is presented separately for governmental funds. In order to achieve a break-even
result in the Internal Service Fund activity, differences in the basis of accounting and reclassifications are
allocated back to user departments. These allocations are reflected in the government-wide statements. Any
residual amounts of the Internal Service Funds are reported in the governmental activity column.

The proprietary funds have a reconciliation presented in the proprietary funds’ Statement of Net Position and
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position related to the Internal Service Fund allocation.
The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate accounting
entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that
comprise its assets and other debits, liabilities, fund balances and other credits, revenues and expenditures, or
expenses, as appropriate. Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based
upon the proceeds of revenue sources, those proceeds’ restrictions or commitments for which they are to be
spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled.
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fund Accounting (Continued)

The City has three types of funds: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. The fund financial statements
provide more detailed information about the City’s most significant funds but not on the City as a whole. Major
governmental and enterprise funds are reported separately in the fund financial statements. Nonmajor funds are
aggregated in the fund financial statements and independently presented in the combining statements.

The criteria used to determine if a governmental or enterprise fund should be reported as a major fund are as
follows: the total assets and deferred outflows of resources, the total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources,
revenues or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or enterprise fund are at least 10.0% of the
corresponding element total for all funds of that category or type (that is, total governmental or total enterprise
funds), and the same element that met the 10.0% criterion above in the governmental or enterprise fund is at least
5.0% of the corresponding element total for all governmental and enterprise funds combined.

The following is a brief description of the major governmental funds that are separately presented in the fund
financial statements:

e The General Fund is always presented as a major fund.

e The Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-
term debt principal, interest, and related costs, except those that are accounted for in enterprise funds.

e The City has designated Pre-K 4 SA, a blended component unit, as a major fund due to the high-profile
nature and fiscal transparency for the program, which was funded by a voter-increased sales tax.

e The Convention Center Hotel Finance Corporation, a blended component unit, accounts for the receipt and
disbursement of resources within the local economy in order to stimulate business and commercial activity
in the City. It was created to issue debt for the construction of the Grand Hyatt and to further promote
tourism within the City.

e The 2017 General Obligation Bonds Fund, a capital projects fund, accounts for the receipt and disbursement
of bond proceeds for physical infrastructure development and improvement projects approved in an
$850,000 bond election held on May 6, 2017.

The following is a brief description of the major enterprise funds that are separately presented in the fund financial
statements:

o The Airport System accounts for the operation of the San Antonio International Airport and Stinson Municipal
Airport. Financing for the Airport System’s operations is provided by user fees, while financing for the Airport
System’s capital is primarily funded by City issued revenue bonds (repaid with user fees), grants and facility
charges assessed to users.

e Solid Waste Management accounts for all revenues and expenses associated with the operations and
maintenance of the City’s solid waste and environmental management programs, required debt service for
outstanding bonds, and construction and management of Solid Waste Management’s assets.
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fund Accounting (Continued)

Governmental Funds

General Fund is the primary operating fund for the City, which accounts for and reports all financial resources of
the general government not accounted for and reported in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
restricted, committed or assigned to expenditures for specified purposes other than debt service and capital
projects. The specific revenue sources are the foundation for the fund’s designation and are expected to continue
to comprise a substantial portion of the inflows reported in the fund. If the fund no longer expects that a
substantial portion of the inflows will derive from restricted or committed revenue sources, the fund’s remaining
resources and activities are reported in the General Fund.

Debt Service Fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned
to expenditures for principal and interest as well as financial resources that are being accumulated for principal
and interest maturing in future years.

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or
assigned to expenditures for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other
capital assets, except those financed by enterprise funds.

Permanent Funds are used to account for and report resources that are restricted to the extent that only earnings,
not principal, may be used for purposes that support the reporting government’s programs - that is, for the benefit
of the government or its citizenry.

The governmental funds that have legally adopted budgets are the General Fund, Debt Service Fund, Special
Revenue Funds (excluding HOME Program, Categorical Grant-In-Aid, HUD 108 Loan Program, Community
Development Program, Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone, San Antonio Housing Trust, and most Community
Services Funds), City Cemeteries, and Pre-K 4 SA.

Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Funds are used to account for and report operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar
to private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that the expenses (including
depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis should be financed or
recovered primarily through user charges.

Internal Service Funds are used to account for and report the financing of goods or services provided by one
department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City, or to other governmental units, on a cost-
reimbursement basis. The City's self-insurance programs, data processing programs, other internal service
programs, and Capital Management Services (CMS) are accounted for in these funds.

Year-Ended September 30, 2019 -38- Amounts are expressed in thousands



Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fund Accounting (Continued)

Fiduciary Funds

The Trust and Agency Funds are used to account for and report assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as
an agent for individuals, private organizations, and other governmental units. The Fire and Police Pension Fund is a
statutory trust fund established to provide pension benefits to eligible uniformed employees. The Fire and Police
Retiree Health Care Fund is a statutory trust fund established to provide Other Post-Employment Retirement
Benefits (OPEB) for retired uniformed employees and their dependents. The City’s Retiree Health Care Fund meets
the criteria of a fiduciary fund and manages OPEB for retired City civilian employees. The Agency Funds account for
the City's sales and use tax to be remitted to the State of Texas, various fees for other governmental entities,
unclaimed property, and various deposits held.

Fire and Police Pension Fund, Fire and Police Retiree Health Care Fund, and Retiree Health Benefits Insurance
Fund are accounted for in essentially the same manner as proprietary funds. Agency Funds are custodial in nature

(assets equal liabilities) and do not involve the measurement of results of operations.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Primary Government (City)

The government-wide financial statements present information about the City as a whole. Government-wide
financial statements exclude both fiduciary funds and fiduciary component units. The Statement of Net Position
and the Statement of Activities are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. The City recognizes revenue from property taxes in the period for
which they were levied. Other taxes and fees are recognized as revenue in the year they are earned. Revenues
from grants and similar items are recognized in the fiscal year the qualifying expenditures are made and all other
eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Program revenues are presented in the government-wide Statement of Activities. The City reports program
revenues in three categories: (1) charges for services, (2) operating grants and contributions, and (3) capital
grants and contributions. They are presented separately as a reduction of the total expense to arrive at the net
expense of each functional activity. Program revenues are revenues generated by transactions with outside
parties who purchase, use, or directly benefit from a program. They also include amounts such as grants and
contributions received from outside parties that restrict the use of those resources to specific programs.

1) Charges for services are revenues generated by those who purchase goods or services from the City. Examples
of charges for services include airport landing fees, solid waste collection and disposal fees, and flat rate
parking fees. Fines and forfeitures, licenses and permits, and intergovernmental revenues as reported in the
General Fund are also reported under charges for services.

2) Operating grants and contributions are those revenues that are restricted in the way they may be spent for
operations of a particular program.

3) Capital grants and contributions are also restricted revenues whose resources may only be spent to purchase,
build or use capital assets for specified programs.
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued)

Primary Government (City) (Continued)

All governmental funds are accounted for using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. This means that only current assets and current liabilities are generally
included in their balance sheets, and revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they become
available and measurable. Available means collectible within the current period, or soon enough thereafter, to be
used to pay liabilities of the current period.

Revenues from property taxes, sales and use taxes, occupancy taxes, gross receipts taxes, municipal court fines and
fees, licenses, revenues from utilities, and investment earnings are susceptible to accrual. The City’s availability
period is no more than 60 days beyond the end of the fiscal year. Grant revenues are recognized when
reimbursable expenditures are made, all other eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met,
and the City receives reimbursement within 60 days of the fiscal year-end. Grant funds received in advance are
recorded as unearned revenue until earned and available.

Gross receipts and sales and use taxes are considered available when received by intermediary collecting
governments and are recognized at that time. Anticipated refunds of such taxes are recorded as liabilities and
reductions of revenue when they are measurable and their validity seems certain.

Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in which the fund liability is incurred; however, accrued
leave, debt service expenditures, claims and judgments, arbitrage rebates, pension, post-employment obligations,
asset retirement obligation and pollution remediation are recorded only when the liability is matured.

The reported fund balance (net current assets) for each fund is considered a measure of current financial
resources. Governmental fund operating statements present increases (revenues and other financing sources) and
decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. Accordingly, they are said to present a
summary of sources and uses of current financial resources during the period.

Special reporting treatments are applied to governmental fund materials and supplies, prepaid expenditures, and
deposits to indicate that they do not represent current financial resources, since they do not represent net current
assets. Such amounts are generally offset by fund balance nonspendable accounts.

Proprietary, Pension, Health Funds, and governmental and business-type activities are accounted for using the
accrual basis of accounting. Their revenues are recognized when they are earned, and their expenses and related
liabilities, including claims, judgments, and accrued leave, are recognized when they are incurred. These funds are
accounted for on a cost of services or economic resources measurement focus. Consequently, all assets and all
liabilities (whether current or noncurrent), as well as deferred inflows and outflows of resources associated with its
activity, are included in their Statement of Net Position. The reported proprietary fund net position is segregated
into three components: (1) net investment in capital assets, (2) restricted, and (3) unrestricted. Proprietary fund
type operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net position.
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued)

Primary Government (City) (Continued)

Proprietary funds report both operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses in the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. The City defines operating revenues as those receipts
generated by a specified program offering either a good or service. For example, parking garage and surface lot
charges are operating revenues of the Parking System. This definition is consistent with GASB Statement No. 9,
Reporting Cash Flows of Proprietary and Nonexpendable Trust Funds and Governmental Entities That Use
Proprietary Fund Accounting, which defines operating receipts as cash receipts from customers and other cash
receipts that do not result from transactions defined as capital and related financing, noncapital financing or
investing activities. Operating expenses include personal services, contractual services, commodities, other
expenses (such as insurance), and depreciation on capital assets. Revenues and expenses not fitting the above
definitions are considered nonoperating.

CPS Energy

CPS Energy’s operating revenues include receipts from energy sales, ancillary services and miscellaneous
revenue related to the operation of electric and gas systems. Miscellaneous revenue includes late payment fees
and rental income.

CPS Energy’s revenues are recorded when earned. Customers’ meters are read or periodically estimated, and bills
are prepared monthly based on billing cycles. Rate tariffs include adjustment clauses that permit recovery of
electric and gas fuel costs. CPS Energy has used historical information from prior fiscal years as partial bases to
estimate and record earned revenue not yet billed. This process has involved an extrapolation of customer usage
over the days since the last meter read through the last day of the monthly period. Also included in unbilled
revenue is the over/under-recoveries of electric and gas fuel costs and regulatory assessments.

CPS Energy’s electric fuel cost adjustment clause also permits recovery of regulatory assessments. CPS Energy
recovers assessments from the Public Utility Commission of Texas (PUCT) for transmission access charges and from
the Texas Independent System Operator, also known as the Electric Reliability Council of Texas (ERCOT), for its
operating costs and other charges applicable to CPS Energy as a wholesale provider of power to other utilities.
Regulatory assessments for fiscal year 2019 were $86,202.

Operating expenses are recorded as incurred and include those costs that result from the ongoing operations of
the electric and gas systems.

Nonoperating revenue consists primarily of investment income, including fair market value adjustments and
rental income from the sale of communication towers. Certain miscellaneous income amounts from renting
general property and providing various services are also recorded as nonoperating revenue when they are not
directly identified with the electric or gas systems.
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued)

CPS Energy (Continued)

CPS Energy accounts for its legal obligation to decommission STP Units 1 and 2 in accordance with GASB
Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations, which was adopted during fiscal year 2019. CPS Energy
accounts for decommissioning by recognizing its pro rata share of an Asset Retirement Obligation (ARO) based
on the best estimate of the current values of outlays expected to be incurred, determined by the most recent
cost study. A new cost study is performed every five years, and in years subsequent to the latest study, the
Statement requires the current value of CPS Energy’s ARO be adjusted for the effects of inflation or deflation, at
least annually. CPS Energy restated balances due to the implementation of GASB Statement No. 83. See Note 19
Prior Period Restatement for more information.

Additionally, due to requirements under the Code of Federal Regulations governing nuclear decommissioning
trust funds, guidance pertaining to regulated operations provided in GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of
Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA
Pronouncements, has been followed. Under this guidance, the zero net position approach is applied in
accounting for the Decommissioning Trusts. In accordance with Statement No. 62, the cumulative effect of
activity in the Decommissioning Trusts has been recorded as a regulatory liability reported on the Statement of
Net Position as Other Payables (net of current portion), since any excess funds are payable to customers. Going
forward, prolonged unfavorable economic conditions could result in the assets of the Decommissioning Trusts
being less than the estimated decommissioning liability. In that case, instead of an excess as currently exists,
there would be a deficit that would be reported as decommissioning net costs recoverable. This amount would
be a receivable from customers.

To reflect funding methodology, the Allowance for Funds Used During Construction (AFUDC) rate includes both a
debt and an equity component. The blended rate is composed of 50.0% equity and 50.0% debt based on
construction funding. The investment rate is reviewed quarterly to determine if any adjustments are necessary.
Alternate AFUDC rates are applied to projects costing more than $100,000, reflecting the method by which they
are funded.

Periodically, federal or state grants are made available to CPS Energy as a subrecipient for a portion of grant
funds allocated to the State of Texas or as direct awards. Grant receipts are recorded as nonoperating income
and generally reimburse CPS Energy for costs, recorded as operating expenses, incurred in the administration of
the program. Federal or state grants that subsidize in whole or a partial amount of capital assets are recognized
as capital contributions. These accounting treatments result in no impact to CPS Energy’s net position. Revenues
associated with the grant-related programs are exempt from payments of a percentage of gross revenues made
to the City. Grant funding received by CPS Energy is subject to review and audit by the grantor agencies. Such
audits could lead to requests for reimbursements to the grantor agencies for expenses disallowed under terms
of the grants. Management believes such disallowances, if any, would be immaterial.
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued)

San Antonio Water System (SAWS)

SAWS’ revenues are recorded as goods or services are provided. Customers’ meters are read and bills are prepared
monthly based on billing cycles. SAWS uses historical information to estimate and record earned revenue not yet
billed.

SAWS'’ principal operating revenues are charges to customers for water supply, water delivery, wastewater, and
chilled water services. Operating expenses include the costs of service, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Nonoperating revenues consist primarily of interest income earned on investments. Nonoperating expenses
consist primarily of interest expense, debt related costs, sales of capital assets, and payments to the City.

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so
will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. Deferred inflows of
resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized
as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

Primary Government (City)

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources in the Statement of Net Position are shown in the table below:

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type
Deferred Outflows of Resources: Activities Activities Total
Deferred Outflows of Resources related to Pensions S 366,833 S 17,245 S 384,078
Contributions Subsequent to Measurement Date related to
Pensions 85,322 6,889 92,211
Deferred Outflows of Resources related to OPEB 95,733 13,356 109,089
Contributions Subsequent to Measurement Date related to OPEB 24,700 196 24,896
Deferred Outflows of Resources related to ARO 262 257 519
Loss on bond refunding 24,827 2,482 27,309
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources S 597,677 S 40,425 S 638,102
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Deferred Inflows of Resources related to Pensions $ 68,357 S 1,267 S 69,624
Deferred Inflows of Resources related to OPEB 91,682 7,243 98,925
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources S 160,039 S 8,510 S 168,549

Additional information concerning deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions and OPEB can be found in Note 9 Pension and Retirement Plans and Note 10 Postemployment
Retirement Benefits, respectively.

Year-Ended September 30, 2019 -43 - Amounts are expressed in thousands



Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources (Continued)

Primary Government (City) (Continued)

Deferred inflows of resources in the governmental fund financial statements related to the unavailable revenues
are shown in the table below:

Governmental
Deferred Inflows of Resources: Funds
Revenues associated with loan receivables S 10,434
Revenues associated with grants 8,305
Revenues associated with:
Property Tax Collections 22,605
EMS Collections 14,906
Municipal Court Fines 5,922
Library Fines 1,065
Alarm Fees 1,039
Magistrate/Detention Fees 398
Fire Marshall Fees 197
Revenues associated with SAWS, CPS, and the Port contributions to projects 161
CCHFC - unavailable receipts for a loan from the Grand Hyatt Hotel 171,090
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources in the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
Statement S 236,122
CPS Energy
Deferred outflows and inflows of resources are shown in the table below:
Deferred Outflows of Resources: CPS Energy
Unrealized pension contributions S 58,700
Losses relating to pension 102,915
Unrealized contributions to the OPEB Plan 1,000
Losses related to OPEB 10,578
Unrealized losses on fuel hedges 4,606
Unamortized debt reacquisition costs 62,205
Unamortized costs for asset retirement obligations 491,132
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources S 731,136
Deferred Inflows of Resources: -
Unrealized gains related to pension S 147,795
Unrealized gains related to OPEB 23,154
Unrealized gains on fuel hedges 273
Sale of future revenues 2,136
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources S 173,358
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources (Continued)

San Antonio Water System (SAWS)

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources are shown in the table below:

Deferred Outflows of Resources: SAWS

Deferred charges on bond refunding S 42,048
Decrease of fair value of hedging derivatives 9,332
Unrealized pension contributions 12,382
Unrealized OPEB contributions 15,308
Losses related to pension 5,721
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources S 84,791

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Differences between expected and actual experience and

changes of assumptions related to pension S 17,807
Differences between expected and actual experience and

changes of assumptions related to OPEB 6,040
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources m

Current Year GASB Statement Implementations

In fiscal year 2019, the City implemented the following GASB Statements:

GASB Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations, addresses accounting and financial reporting for
certain asset retirement obligations (AROs). An ARO is a legally enforceable liability associated with the retirement
of a tangible capital asset. A government that has legal obligations to perform future asset retirement activities
related to its tangible capital assets should recognize a liability based on the guidance in this Statement. This
Statement establishes criteria for determining the timing and pattern of recognition of a liability and a
corresponding deferred outflow of resources for AROs. This Statement requires that recognition occur when the
liability is both incurred and reasonably estimable. The determination of when the liability is incurred should be
based on the occurrence of external laws, regulations, contracts, or court judgments, together with the occurrence
of an internal event that obligates a government to perform asset retirement activities. This Statement requires
the measurement of an ARO to be based on the best estimate of the current value of outlays expected to be
incurred. This Statement requires the current value of a government’s AROs to be adjusted for the effects of
general inflation or deflation at least annually. The City implemented this Statement in fiscal year 2019. See Note
13 Other Obligations for more information.
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Current Year GASB Statement Implementations (Continued)

GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements,
improves the information that is disclosed in notes to government financial statements related to debt,
including direct borrowings and direct placements. It also clarifies which liabilities governments should include
when disclosing information related to debt. This Statement defines debt for purposes of disclosure in notes to
financial statements as a liability that arises from a contractual obligation to pay cash (or other assets that may
be used in lieu of cash) in one or more payments to settle an amount that is fixed at the date the contractual
obligation is established. This Statement requires that additional essential information related to debt be
disclosed in notes to financial statements, including unused lines of credit; assets pledged as collateral for the
debt; and terms specified in debt agreements related to significant events of default with finance-related
consequences, significant termination events with finance-related consequences, and significant subjective
acceleration clauses. This Statement also requires that existing and additional information be provided for direct
borrowings and direct placements of debt separately from other debt. The City implemented this Statement in
fiscal year 2019. See Note 7 Long-Term Debt for more information.

SAWS, a City discretely presented component unit, will implement GASB Statement No. 83 and GASB Statement
No. 88 in fiscal year 2020.

Future GASB Statement Implementations

GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and
local governments. The focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of
the fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are
included to identify fiduciary component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary
activities. Governments with activities meeting the criteria should present a statement of fiduciary net position
and a statement of changes in fiduciary net position. An exception to that requirement is provided for a
business-type activity that normally expects to hold custodial assets for three months or less. This Statement
describes four fiduciary funds that should be reported, if applicable: (1) pension (and other employee benefit)
trust funds, (2) investment trust funds, (3) private-purpose trust funds, and (4) custodial funds. Custodial funds
generally should report fiduciary activities that are not held in a trust or equivalent arrangement that meets
specific criteria. This Statement also provides for recognition of a liability to the beneficiaries in a fiduciary fund
when an event has occurred that compels the government to disburse fiduciary resources. The requirements of
this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. The City will assess and
implement this Statement where necessary in fiscal year 2020.

(The remainder of this page left blank intentionally)
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Future GASB Statement Implementations (Continued)

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, will better meet the information needs of financial statement users by
improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments. This Statement increases the
usefulness of governments’ financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for
leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of
resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting
based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this
Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a
lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the
relevance and consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities. A lease is defined as a contract
that conveys control of the right to use another entity’s nonfinancial asset (the underlying asset) as specified in
the contract for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. Any contract that meets this
definition should be accounted for under the leases guidance, unless specifically excluded in this Statement. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. The City
will assess and implement this Statement where necessary in fiscal year 2021.

GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before the End of a Construction Period, will
enhance the relevance and comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a
reporting period and simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period. This
Statement establishes accounting requirements for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction
period. Such interest cost includes all interest that previously was accounted for in accordance with the
requirements of paragraphs 5—-22 of GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting
Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, which are superseded by this
Statement. This Statement requires that interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period be
recognized as an expense in the period in which the cost is incurred for financial statements prepared using the
economic resources measurement focus. As a result, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction
period will not be included in the historical cost of a capital asset reported in a business-type activity or
enterprise fund. This Statement also reiterates that in financial statements prepared using the current financial
resources measurement focus, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period should be
recognized as an expenditure on a basis consistent with governmental fund accounting principles. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. The City
will assess and implement this Statement where necessary in fiscal year 2021.

GASB Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests—an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 6, will
improve the consistency and comparability of reporting a government’s majority equity interest in a legally
separate organization and to improve the relevance of financial statement information for certain component
units. It defines a majority equity interest and specifies that a majority equity interest in a legally separate
organization should be reported as an investment if a government’s holding of the equity interest meets the
definition of an investment. This Statement establishes that ownership of a majority equity interest in a legally
separate organization results in the government being financially accountable for the legally separate
organization and, therefore, the government should report that organization as a component unit. This
Statement also requires that a component unit in which a government has a 100.0% equity interest account for
its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources at acquisition value at the
date the government acquired a 100.0% equity interest in the component unit. Transactions presented in flows
statements of the component unit in that circumstance should include only transactions that occurred
subsequent to the acquisition. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning
after December 15, 2018. The City will assess and implement this Statement where necessary in fiscal year 2020.
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Future GASB Statement Implementations (Continued)

GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations, will provide a single method of reporting conduit debt
obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in practice associated with commitments extended by issuers,
arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations, and related note disclosures. This Statement achieves
those objectives by clarifying the existing definition of a conduit debt obligation; establishing that a conduit debt
obligation is not a liability of the issuer; establishing standards for accounting and financial reporting of
additional commitments and voluntary commitments extended by issuers and arrangements associated with
conduit debt obligations; and improving required note disclosures. The requirements of this Statement are
effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2020. The City will assess and implement this
Statement where necessary in fiscal year 2022.

GASB Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020, will enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to
improve the consistency of authoritative literature by addressing practice issues that have been identified
during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements. This Statement addresses a variety of topics
and includes specific provisions about the following: effective date of Statement No. 87, Leases, and
Implementation Guide No. 2019-3, Leases, for interim financial reports; reporting of intra-entity transfers of
assets between a primary government employer and a component unit defined benefit pension plan or defined
benefit other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plan; applicability of Statements No. 73, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and
Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68, as amended, and No. 74, Financial Reporting
for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, as amended, to reporting assets accumulated for
postemployment benefits; applicability of certain requirements of Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, to
postemployment benefit arrangements; measurement of liabilities (and assets, if any) related to asset
retirement obligations (AROs) in a government acquisition; reporting by public entity risk pools for amounts that
are recoverable from reinsurers or excess insurers; reference to nonrecurring fair value measurements of assets
or liabilities in authoritative literature; and terminology used to refer to derivative instruments. The
requirements related to the effective date of Statement No. 87 and Implementation Guide 2019-3, reinsurance
recoveries, and terminology used to refer to derivative instruments are effective upon issuance, effective fiscal
year 2020. The remaining components are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2020. The
City will assess and implement this Statement were necessary in fiscal years 2020 and 2021.

The City has not fully determined the effects that implementation of these statements will have on the City’s
financial statements.

(The remainder of this page left blank intentionally)
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

The City's investment practices are governed by state statutes and by the City’s own Investment Policy. City cash is
required to be deposited in Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insured banks located within the State of
Texas. A pooled cash and investment strategy is utilized, which enables the City to have one central depository.
Investments are pooled into two primary categories: operating funds and debt service funds. The balances in these
funds are invested in an aggregate or pooled amount, with principal and interest income distributed to each
respective fund on a prorated basis. In addition, the City may purchase certain investments with the available
balance of a specific fund for the sole benefit of such fund. Fair market value of the City’s investments is
determined by quoted market prices and valuations using interest rate curves and credit spreads applied to the
terms of the debt instrument, while also considering the counterparty rating. The City’s policy with respect to
money market investments, which have a remaining maturity of one year or less at the time of purchase, is to
report those investments at amortized cost, which approximates fair value. Amortization of premium or accretion
of discount is recorded over the term of the investments. As of September 30, 2019, the City’s investment portfolio
did not contain any derivative or alternative investment products, nor was it leveraged in any way. Derivatives or
alternative investment products are found only where noted in the Pension Fund and Health Fund. For a listing of
authorized investments, see Note 4 Cash and Cash Equivalents, Securities Lending and Investments.

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the City considers all highly liquid investments with an original
maturity of approximately 90 days or less to be cash equivalents.

Materials and Supplies and Prepaid Items

Materials and supplies consist principally of expendable items held for consumption and are stated at cost, based
on first-in first-out and lower of average cost or market methods. For governmental and proprietary fund types,
the "consumption" method is used to account for certain materials and supplies. Under the consumption method,
these acquisitions are recorded in materials and supplies accounts and charged as expenditures for governmental
funds and as expenses for proprietary funds when used.

Prepaid items are goods and services that are paid in advance. These payments reflect costs applicable to future
accounting periods and are recorded in both government-wide and fund financial statements. Using the
consumption method, prepaid items are charged as expenditures for governmental funds and as expenses for
proprietary funds as the goods or services are used.

Capital Assets and Depreciation

Primary Government (City)

All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available.
Donated capital assets, works of art, historical treasures, or capital assets received in a service concession
agreement are valued at acquisition value. Capital assets recorded under capital leases are recorded at the present
value of future minimum lease payments. Depreciation on all exhaustible capital assets of the City is charged as an
expense with accumulated depreciation being reported in the Statement of Net Position. Depreciation is provided
over the estimated useful lives of the assets using the straight-line method.
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Capital Assets and Depreciation (Continued)

Primary Government (City) (Continued)

The City has established capitalization thresholds for automotive equipment, computer software, computer
equipment, machinery and equipment, buildings, improvements, infrastructure, and depreciable intangible (e.g.
right of ways, easements, internally generated software). Some intangible assets may have an indefinite life. For
those assets, depreciation is not calculated. Capital assets are tested for impairment when a significant unexpected
decline in its service utility occurs. Losses are recorded net of any insurance recovery when the recovery is
realizable in the respective fiscal year.

The estimated useful lives and capitalization thresholds applied are as follows:

Useful Life Capitalization
Assets (Years) Threshold

Automotive Equipment 5-10 S 5
Computer Software 5-10 5
Computer Equipment 5-10 5
Machinery and Equipment 5-20 5
Buildings 10-40 100
Depreciable Intangible 5-40 100
Improvements (other than buildings) 10-40 100
Infrastructure 10-100 100

CPS Energy

The costs of additions and replacements of assets identified as major components or property units are capitalized.
Maintenance and replacements of minor items are charged to operating expense. Except for certain assets that
may become impaired, the cost of a depreciable plant that is retired, plus removal costs and less salvage, is
charged to accumulated depreciation. Per the financial reporting requirements of GASB Statement No. 42,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Impairment of Capital Assets and for Insurance Recoveries, any losses
associated with capital asset impairments will be charged to operations, not to accumulated depreciation.

CPS Energy’s utility plant is stated at the cost of construction, including expenses for contracted services; direct
equipment, material and labor; indirect costs, including general engineering, labor, equipment and material
overheads; and Allowance for Funds Used During Construction (AFUDC), or capitalized interest. AFUDC is applied
to projects that require 30 days or more to complete.

Proceeds from customers to partially fund construction expenses are reported as capital grants and contributions
in the Statement of Activities as increases in net position in accordance with the requirements of GASB Statement
No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions. The amount reported for capital grants
and contributions was $54,936 for the period ending January 31, 2019, including donated assets of $5,150. The
remaining portion of this balance, $49,786 for fiscal year 2019 represents contributions received from customers
as payments for utility extensions and services, as well as funding for community initiatives and other local
partnership projects.
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Capital Assets and Depreciation (Continued)

CPS Energy (Continued)
Except for nuclear fuel, which is amortized over units of production, CPS Energy computes depreciation using the
straight-line method over the estimated service lives of the depreciable property according to asset type. Total

depreciation as a percent of total depreciable assets, excluding nuclear fuel, was 3.4% for fiscal year 2019.

The estimated useful lives of depreciable capital assets are as follows:

Useful Life

Depreciable Capital Assets (Years)
Buildings and Structures 20-45
Utility Plant in Service:

Generation 18-49

Transmission and Distribution 15-60

Gas 35-65
Machinery and Equipment 4-20
Intangibles:

Software 10

Other 20-30
Mineral Rights and Other 20-40
Nuclear Fuel Units of Production

Thresholds contained in CPS Energy’s capitalization policy for fiscal year 2019 are as follows:

Capitalization

Assets Threshold

Land, Land Improvements and Certain Easements Capitalize All
Buildings and Building Improvements S 10
Computer Software:

Purchased 50

Internally Developed 50

Enhancements/Upgrades 50
Computer Hardware 3
All Other Assets 3

(The remainder of this page left blank intentionally)
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Capital Assets and Depreciation (Continued)

San Antonio Water System (SAWS)

SAWS'’ capital assets in service are capitalized when the unit cost is greater than or equal to $5. Utility plant
additions are recorded at cost, which includes materials, labor, direct internal costs, and interest capitalized during
construction. Capital assets include intangible assets, which consist of purchased water rights and land capital
easements, costs associated with acquiring additional Certificates of Convenience and Necessity related to new
service areas, and development costs for internally generated computer software. Assets acquired through capital
leases are recorded on the cost basis and included in utility plant in service. Assets acquired through contributions,
such as those from developers, are recorded at estimated acquisition value at date of donation. Maintenance,
repairs, and minor renewals are charged to operating expense; major plant replacements are capitalized.

Capital assets are depreciated on the straight-line method. This method is applied to all individual assets except
distribution and collection mains and intangible assets. Groups of mains are depreciated on the straight-line
method over an estimated average useful life of 50 years. Mains are included in the distribution and transmission
system asset category and the collection system category. Intangible assets not considered to have indefinite
useful lives are amortized over their estimated useful life. Capital assets are tested for impairment when a
significant unexpected decline in its service utility occurs.

The following table shows an estimated range of useful lives used in providing for depreciation of capital assets:

Useful Life

Assets (Years)
Structures and Improvements 25-50
Pumping and Purification Equipment 10-50
Distribution and Transmission System 17.5-50
Collection System 50
Treatment Facilities 25
Machinery and Equipment 5-20
Furniture and Fixtures 3-10
Computer Equipment 5
Software 3-10
Intangible Assets (Definite Useful Life) 20

Accrued Leave

Primary Government (City)

In the governmental fund financial statements, the City accrues annual leave and associated employee related
costs when matured for both civilian and uniformed employees. Sick leave is not accrued for civilian employees
and is not payable upon termination. The City accrues the matured portion of its uniformed employees’ accrued
sick leave, holiday, and bonus pay in accordance with the respective collective bargaining agreements, which state
that uniformed employees must provide notice in writing ahead of the first pay period in October to be eligible for
buyback. Because notice is provided to the City by fiscal year-end, the City accrues uniformed employees’ eligible
buyback, as it is due and payable by September 30"
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Accrued Leave (Continued)

Primary Government (City)(Continued)

For governmental fund types, the matured current portion of the liability resulting from the accrual of these leave
liabilities is recorded in the respective governmental fund and reported in the fund financial statements, while the
entire liability is reported in the government-wide financials. The current and long-term portions of the liability
related to proprietary fund types are accounted for in the respective proprietary funds.

CPS Energy
Employees earn vacation benefits based upon their employment status and years of service.
San Antonio Water System (SAWS)

It is SAWS’ policy to accrue earned but unused employee vacation pay as well as the employer portion of Social
Security taxes and required employer pension contributions related to the accrued vacation pay. Sick leave is not
accrued and a terminating employee is not paid for accumulated sick leave.

Insurance

Activity for the City’s self-insurance programs is recorded in the Internal Service Funds. Assets and obligations
related to property and casualty liability, employee health benefits, workers’ compensation, unemployment
compensation, and employee wellness are included. Retired employee health benefit activity is reported in a
Fiduciary Fund.

The City is insured for property loss on a primary basis through Factory Mutual Insurance Company. The City is
completely self-insured for liability claims. Related liabilities are accrued based on the City’s estimates of the
aggregate liability for claims made and claims incurred but not reported prior to the end of the fiscal year. The City
determines and accrues loss liabilities based on an actuarial assessment of historical claim data and industry trends
performed annually less expenditures issued after fiscal year-end and accrued during close out that were included
in the reserve census data given to the actuaries.

The City also provides employee health insurance, which includes funding a prorated share of retiree health
benefit costs, workers’ compensation, and unemployment benefits under its self-insurance programs. The City
purchases medical claims stop-loss insurance from HM Life Insurance Company. The stop-loss insurance covers
civilian and uniformed active employees, non-Medicare eligible retirees, and eligible dependents for claims paid
exceeding $1,100.

Employee and retiree health benefit liabilities are determined and accrued based upon the City’s estimates of
aggregate liabilities for unpaid benefits utilizing claim lag data from the City’s third-party administrator. The City
additionally determines and accrues post-employment liabilities based on an actuarial assessment of historical
claim data performed bi-annually and reviewed annually. Current year unpaid benefit liabilities for retirees are
netted against the post-employment liability as additional contributions.
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Insurance (Continued)

The City is a member of the Texas Municipal League Workers’ Compensation Joint Insurance Fund and uses this
fund as a mechanism for administering workers’ compensation claims that occurred prior to September 30,
1986. Workers’ compensation claims that occurred after October 1, 1986 are administered by third-party
administrators. The City records all workers’ compensation loss contingencies, including claims incurred but not
reported. The City determines and accrues workers’ compensation liabilities based on an actuarial assessment of
historical claim data and industry trends performed annually. The City has been completely self-insured for
workers’ compensation claims since May 1, 2013.

Regarding unemployment compensation, the City is subject to the State of Texas Employment Commission Act.
Under this Act, the City’s method for providing unemployment compensation is to reimburse the State for claims
paid by the State.

All insurance carriers providing coverage for the City are required to possess an A.M. Best Company rating of A- or
better, where A- denotes Excellent. A.M. Best is an industry recognized rating service for insurance companies. For
more detailed explanation of the City’s self-insurance programs, see Note 14 Risk Financing.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the City and
additions to/deductions from the City’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are
reported by the City. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
See Note 9 Pension and Retirement Plans for more information.

Fund Balance

Fund balances are classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned based to the
extent to which the City is bound to observe constraints imposed on the use of the resources in the
governmental funds. The classifications are as follows:

¢ Nonspendable — The nonspendable fund balance includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are
either not in spendable form or legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The “not in
spendable form” criterion includes items that are not expected to be converted to cash, for example,
inventories and prepaids.

e Restricted — The fund balance is reported as restricted when constraints placed on the use of resources are
either externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulation of other governments or imposed by law through enabling legislation.

e Committed — The committed fund balance includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes
imposed by formal action (ordinance) of City Council. Those committed amounts cannot be used for other
purposes unless City Council removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action it
employed to previously commit those amounts. Committed fund balance also incorporates contractual
obligations to the extent that existing resources in the fund have been specifically committed for use in
satisfying those contractual requirements.
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fund Balance (Continued)

e Assigned — Amounts in the assigned fund balance are intended to be used by the City for specific purposes
but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. In the General Fund, assigned
amounts represent intended uses established by the City Council, City Manager, Executive Leadership Team,
and Department Directors.

e Unassigned — Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund. This classification
represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and does not have a specific purpose. In
the governmental funds other than the General Fund, if expenditures incurred exceeded the amounts
restricted, committed or assigned, the fund may report a negative unassigned fund balance.

Generally, the City would apply restricted, committed or assigned resources prior to unassigned resources when
expenditure is incurred for purposes for which more than one of the classification of fund balance is available.

See Note 16 Fund Balance Classifications for more detail.

Assets associated with cash and receivables received from restricted sources (grants, bond issuances, legislative
items, or other third party restrictions) as well as associated obligations are categorized as restricted.

Allocation of Indirect Expenses

The City recovers indirect costs in the General Fund through the application of departmental indirect cost rates.
These rates are developed and documented in the City’s departmental indirect cost rate plan. In this plan, each
department is classified by function. Indirect costs are budgeted by department and are used as a basis for the
City’s actual indirect cost allocation. Base rates are then applied to actual indirect costs recovered, and indirect
costs are reclassified to reduce general government expenditures. For fiscal year 2019, general government
expenditures in the General Fund were reduced by $19,396, resulting in increased expenditures/expenses in other
governmental functions and in business-type activities in the amounts of $12,298 and $7,098, respectively.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations
are reported as liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. Bond premiums and discounts are amortized over the
life of the debt. Deferred charges on refunding (the difference between the reacquisition price and the carrying
value of the existing debt) are deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the original bonds or the life of
the refunding bonds.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts during the
period of issuance. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on

debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts are reported as other financing uses.

Elimination of Internal Activity

Elimination of internal activity, particularly related to internal service fund and blended component unit
transactions, is needed to make the transition from governmental funds to government-wide activities. The
overriding objective in eliminating the effects of internal service fund activity is to adjust the internal charges to
cause a break-even result. The main objective in eliminating the effect of funding and reimbursement of costs
between the primary government and blended component unit is to remove duplication of same activities.
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Elimination of Internal Activity (Continued)

Eliminating the effect of internal service fund activity requires the City to look back and adjust the Internal Service
Funds’ internal charges. Net income derived from internal service fund activity would cause a prorated reduction in
the charges made to the participating funds/functions. Conversely, an internal service fund net loss would require
a prorated increase in the amounts charged to the participating funds/functions.

Therefore, eliminations made to the Statement of Activities remove the doubling up effect of internal service
fund activity. The residual internal balances between the governmental and business-type activities are reported
in the Statement of Net Position and the internal balance amounts that exist within the governmental funds or
within business-type funds are eliminated. The City reports internal service fund balances in both governmental
and business-type activities, based on the prorated share of the amounts charged to the participating
funds/functions.

The City has four Internal Service Funds: Other Internal Services (OISF), Information Services, Self-Insurance
Funds, and CMS. Through tracking charges to the applicable departments in each fund, the net income or loss
will be allocated back to the user department, based on actual charges incurred over time.

OISF reports on activities of four funds: Purchasing Fund, Equipment Renewal and Replacement Fund, Building
Maintenance Fund, and Fleet Services Fund. The Purchasing Fund generates its revenue through fixed
assessments charged to various funds each year for procurement services, as well as charge-backs for postage
and printing. The Equipment Renewal and Replacement Fund charges fixed assessments associated with the
replacement of vehicles and heavy equipment. Building Maintenance Fund charges user fees based on the space
occupied by departments. Fleet Services Fund charges a monthly amount based on vehicle repair and
maintenance and fuel purchases by each department.

Information Services charge a monthly amount based on the usage of data processing, telephone, and radio
services by each department. The Self-Insurance Funds generates its revenues through fixed assessments
charged to the various funds each year. The Employee Benefits Fund, a component of Self-Insurance Fund,
additionally charges prorated user fees to employees. The CMS Fund generates revenues by charging a capital
administrative fee for activities on projects being worked on. The fund additionally generates revenue through
reimbursements of costs incurred.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management of the City, Pension and Health Fund, CPS Energy, and SAWS to make estimates and assumptions that
affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Application of Restricted and Unrestricted Net Position

The City may receive funding from an organization whose expenditures are restricted to certain allowable costs. In
situations where both restricted and unrestricted net position are expended to cover allowable expenses, the City
will first expend the restricted net position and cover additional costs with unrestricted net position. The City
reserves the right to selectively defer the use of restricted assets or reimburse unrestricted net position with
allowable restricted assets.
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Note 2 Property Taxes

Property taxes are levied and due upon receipt on October 1, based on the assessed value of the previous January
1. The taxes are attached as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1 of the subsequent year, and become
delinquent the following February 1. Property tax billing and collections are performed via an inter-local agreement
with the Bexar County Tax Assessor/Collector's Office.

The City is permitted by the Municipal Finance Law of the State of Texas to levy taxes up to $2.50 per $100 of
taxable valuation (amounts are not reflected in thousands). The tax rate approved by City ordinance for the fiscal
year-ended September 30, 2019, was $0.55827 per $100 taxable valuation, which means that the City has a tax
margin of $1.94173 per $100 taxable valuation (tax rate amounts are not reflected in thousands). This could raise
an additional $2,196,443 per year based on the net taxable valuation of $113,117,850 before the limit is reached.
In fiscal year 2019, the City has forgone property tax revenues as a result of abatement agreements it has entered
into. For more information see Note 3 Tax Abatements.

The City has adopted a Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Program Policy and Implementation Manual for the
utilization of tax increment as a financing mechanism and the creation of Tax Increment Reinvestment Zones (TIRZ)
pursuant to Chapter 311 of the Texas Tax Code. The City has utilized TIF to fund in whole or in part eligible capital
costs for public infrastructure related to economic development, commercial, and residential projects. As of
September 30, 2019, there were 20 existing TIRZ with a total taxable captured value of $4,271,247 for use by the
City to fund capital costs of certain public infrastructure improvements in the TIRZ. For fiscal year 2019, this total
taxable captured value produced $21,663 in tax increment revenues. The existing TIRZ have initial terms ranging
from 19 years to 38 years which are anticipated to expire by fiscal year 2045. It is estimated that the City will
contribute approximately $541,712 in tax increment revenues in aggregate over the life of these TIRZ projects.

Taxable
TIRZ Start Date End Date Captured Value
Rosedale 12/17/1998 9/30/2019 S 7,642
Mission Del Lago 8/19/1999 9/30/2032 193,418
Houston Street 12/9/1999 9/30/2034 593,234
Stablewood Farm 12/14/2000 9/30/2025 54,469
Inner City 12/14/2000 9/30/2025 1,146,950
Plaza Fortuna 12/13/2001 9/30/2025 5,889
Lackland Hills 12/13/2001 9/30/2026 20,722
Northeast Crossing 6/13/2002 9/30/2028 161,011
Brooks City Base 12/9/2004 9/30/2039 445,963
Mission Creek 12/9/2004 9/30/2029 54,415
Hallie Heights 12/9/2004 9/30/2024 20,399
Heather Cove 12/16/2004 9/30/2024 19,807
Hunters Pond 6/1/2006 9/30/2031 34,819
Verano® 12/6/2007 9/30/2045
Westside 12/11/2008 9/30/2032 345,101
Midtown 12/11/2008 9/30/2031 941,648
Mission Drive In 12/11/2008 9/30/2027 91,678
North East Corridor 12/4/2014 9/30/2034 123,699
Hemisfair 2/2/2017 9/30/2037 10,383
Tarasco® 12/13/2018 9/30/2044
S 4,271,247

! Verano TIRZ was active during fiscal year 2019 but had a total taxable
captured value of zero.

2 Fiscal year 2020 will be the first year of tax increment collections for the
Tarasco TIRZ.
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Note 3 Tax Abatements

GASB Statement No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures, defines a tax abatement as a reduction in tax revenues that
results from an agreement between one or more governments and an individual or entity in which (a) one or
more governments promise to forgo tax revenues to which they are otherwise entitled and (b) the individual or
entity promises to take a specific action after the agreement has been entered into that contributes to economic
development or otherwise benefits the government or citizens of those governments.

The City utilizes the following tax abatement programs to provide powerful new resources and incentives to
grow the economy in the region, revitalize targeted areas of the City and promote strong, balanced growth
throughout the community.

The City has not entered into agreements with other governments that would reduce the reporting
government's tax revenues. Other entities are not authorized to enter tax abatement agreements that reduce

the City tax revenue without the City’s consent.

City Tax Abatement Program

e Purpose of program — Encourages a job creation environment to help attract, retain and expand
targeted industries, increase employment and high-wage jobs, expand the tax base, and create long-
term capital investment (including foreign direct investment) and new wealth opportunities in the
community in accordance with the SA Tomorrow Comprehensive Plan.

e Taxes being abated — This program offers a tax abatement of up to 100.0% on real and/or personal
property taxes on improvement values for a maximum term of up to ten years.

e Authority for entering program — Chapter 312 of the Texas Tax Code.

o Eligibility criteria for recipients — A new company or existing local company must meet or exceed all of
the criteria; 1) minimum amounts of new real and/or personal property capital investment; 2) minimum
levels of full-time job creation, excluding data center projects and solar farms; 3) employee and
dependent access to health care benefits; 4) minimum living and all-industry wage requirements for
new and existing employees at project site; and 5) applicant must be in a targeted industry, a qualifying
project or business activity.

e Mechanism used to abate taxes — Through a reduction of the property’s assessed value or as a credit to
the amount of taxes owed.

e How the dollar amount of the abatement was determined — The amount and term of the tax
abatement offered is dependent upon the location and industry of the project, other public incentives
offered for the same project and the overall benefit to the City and community.

e Recapture Provisions — Violations for employment of undocumented workers, failure to meet
investment requirements, failure to meet and maintain the minimum number of employees, failure to
pay property taxes if owed or for refunding agreements, failure to complete project in the agreed upon
deadline, events of relocation or cessation of business activities within the term of the agreement, or
failure to meet other specified terms of the agreement.

o Types of commitments made by recipients — Varies by agreement, including investment in real and
personal property, creating a minimum number of full time jobs, and commitment to maintain business
activities for a set amount of time.

e Other commitments to the recipient — No other commitments are made with this program.
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Note 3 Tax Abatements (Continued)

Economic Development Incentive Fund (EDIF) Program

e Purpose of program — Provide economic development grants and/or loans to eligible companies seeking
to create or retain jobs and invest in San Antonio.

e Taxes being abated — These programs decrease the property tax revenue up to 100.0% from real and/or
personal property for the City by reducing the amount of the assessed value up to 15 years.

e  Authority for entering program — Chapter 380 of the Local Government Code.

o Eligibility criteria for recipients — A new company or existing local company must meet or exceed all of
the criteria; 1) minimum amounts of new real and/or personal property capital investment; 2) minimum
levels of full-time job creation, excluding data center projects and solar farms; 3) employee and
dependent access to health care benefits; 4) minimum living and all-industry wage requirements for
new and existing employees at project site; and 5) applicant must be in a targeted industry, a qualifying
project or business activity.

e Mechanism used to abate taxes — Through a reduction of the property’s assessed value or as a credit to
the amount of taxes owed.

e How the dollar amount of the abatement was determined — The amount of EDIF assistance for a
business recruitment or retention/expansion project will be based on a determination of need for
financial incentives from the City to ensure the attraction, retention and/or expansion of the eligible
company or program. Staff will also conduct a fiscal benefit analysis on each such project and evaluate
the total benefits from all financial incentive programs the City might offer for the project.

e Recapture Provisions — Violations for employment of undocumented workers, failure to meet
investment requirements, failure to meet and maintain the minimum number of employees, failure to
pay property taxes if owed or for refunding agreements, failure to complete project in the agreed upon
deadline, events of relocation or cessation of business activities within the term of the agreement, or
failure to meet other specified terms of the agreement.

e Types of commitments made by recipients — Varies by agreement, including investment in real and
personal property, creating a minimum number of full time jobs, and commitment to maintain business
activities for a set amount of time.

e Other commitments to the recipient — Varies by agreement, may include grants (usually most
significant, amount depends on financial availability), loans, and forgivable loans.

Tax Increment Financing Program — Center City Housing Incentive Policy

e Purpose of program — Provides financial incentives for multi-family housing projects and focuses on
housing redevelopment within the Greater Downtown Area.

e Taxes being abated — This program offers a tax reimbursement of up to 100.0% on real and/or personal
property taxes on improvement values for a maximum term of up to 15 years.

e Authority for entering program — Chapter 311 of the Texas Tax Code, Chapter 380 of the Local
Government Code.

e Eligibility criteria for recipients — All projects must create housing at a density of at least eight units per
acre for adaptive reuse or historic rehabilitation projects, or 16 housing units per acre for all other
projects. Rental projects must maintain first year rental rate for 10.0% of units throughout agreement
term. All projects must receive design approval prior to commencement.

e  Mechanism used to abate taxes — Eligible projects will receive a tax reimbursement disbursed annually
over the life of the agreement.

e How the dollar amount of the abatement was determined — The amount of the tax abatement offered
is dependent on the location of the property and increase of the property value over the term of the
agreement from the base year’s value.
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Note 3 Tax Abatements (Continued)

Tax Increment Financing Program — Center City Housing Incentive Policy (Continued)

e Recapture Provisions — Violations for employment of undocumented workers, failure to meet
investment requirements, failure to meet and maintain the minimum number of employees, failure to
pay property taxes if owed or for refunding agreements, failure to complete project in the agreed upon
deadline, events of relocation or cessation of business activities within the term of the agreement, or
failure to meet other specified terms of the agreement.

e Types of commitments made by recipients — Varies by agreement, including investment in real and
personal property (generally rental housing units).

e Other commitments to the recipient — Varies by agreement, may include SAWS fee waivers (generally
most significant up to $500), City fee waivers, low interest loans, low interest forgivable loans, and
mixed-use forgivable loans.

Tax Increment Financing Program — Non-Center City Housing Incentive Policy

e Purpose of program — This program is to promote local economic development and to stimulate
business and commercial activity.

e Taxes being abated — This program offers a tax reimbursement of up to 100.0% on real and/or personal
property taxes on improvement values for a maximum term of up to 15 years.

e Authority for entering program — Chapter 311 and 312 of the Texas Tax Code, Chapter 380 of the Local
Government Code.

e Eligibility criteria for recipients — All projects must create housing at a density of at least eight units per
acre for adaptive reuse or historic rehabilitation projects, or 16 housing units per acre for all other
projects. Rental projects must maintain first year rental rate for 10.0% of units throughout agreement
term. All projects must receive design approval prior to commencement.

e Mechanism used to abate taxes — Eligible projects will receive a tax reimbursement disbursed annually
over the life of the agreement.

e How the dollar amount of the abatement was determined — The amount of the tax abatement offered
is dependent on the location of the property and increase of the property value over the term of the
agreement from the base year’s value.

e Recapture Provisions — Violations for employment of undocumented workers, failure to meet
investment requirements, failure to meet and maintain the minimum number of employees, failure to
pay property taxes if owed or for refunding agreements, failure to complete project in the agreed upon
deadline, events of relocation or cessation of business activities within the term of the agreement, or
failure to meet other specified terms of the agreement.

e Types of commitments made by recipients — Varies by agreement, including investment in real and
personal property, creating a minimum number of full time jobs, and commitment to maintain business
activities for a set amount of time.

e Other commitments to the recipient — Varies by agreement, may include SAWS fee waivers, (generally
most significant up to $500), City fee waivers, low interest loans, low interest forgivable loans, and
mixed-use forgivable loans.
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Note 3 Tax Abatements (Continued)

Summary

A summary of these taxes forgone on the City’s abatement programs for the year-ended September 30, 2019
follows:

Number of Amount of Taxes

Agreements Abated during

Tax Abatement Program (Not in thousands) the fiscal year

City Tax Abatement Program 17 S 4,121
Economic Development Incentive Fund Program 7 1,174
Center City Housing Incentive Policy 26 1,811
Non-Center City Housing Incentive Policy 8 840
58 S 7,946

(The remainder of this page left blank intentionally)
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Note 4 Cash and Cash Equivalents, Securities Lending and Investments

Summary of Cash and Cash Equivalents, Securities Lending and Investments

| Totals from Statement of Net Position

Fire and Fire and Police
Police Retiree Health CPS
City ! Pension Fund2*  Care Fund > * Energy 3 SAWS*
Unrestricted:
Cash and Cash Equivalents S 77,284 S 57,717 S 7120 §$ 349,704 S 58,064
Security Lending Collateral 95,325
Investments 651,270 2,954,888 357,765 104,171 436,823
Total Unrestricted 728,554 3,107,930 364,885 453,875 494,887
Restricted:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 280,883 234,326 71,926
Investments 941,607 1,107,234 458,978
Total Restricted 1,222,490 1,341,560 530,904
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents,
Securities Lending Collateral
and Investments $ 1,951,044 $ 3,107,930 $ 364885 $ 1795435 $ 1025791

1 Agency and City Retiree Health Care Fund investments are included in the City's pooled cash and investments but are not available
for City activities and are excluded from the primary government's Statement of Net Position. The Agency assets are presented
above as Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents of $3,448 and Investments of $4,563. The City Retiree Health Care Fund assets are
presented above as Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents of $54 and Investments of $538.

2 The Fire and Police Pension Fund and the Fire and Police Retiree Health Care Fund are separately issued fiduciary component units
and are excluded from the primary government's Statement of Net Position.

3 For the fiscal year-ended January 31, 2019.
* For the fiscal year-ended December 31, 2018.

A summary of cash and cash equivalents, securities lending and investments for the primary government (City),
Pension Fund, Health Fund, CPS Energy, and SAWS is presented below as of each entity’s respective fiscal year-end.
This information is provided in order to facilitate reconciliation between the Statement of Net Position and the
following note disclosures:

| Summary of Cash and Cash Equivalents

Fire and Fire and Police
Police Retiree Health CPS
City Pension Fund Care Fund Energy SAWS

Deposits with Financial Institutions S 155,364 S 237 S 63 S 3,398 S 9,085
Investments with Original Maturities

of Less than Ninety Days 151,986 57,480 7,057 580,583 120,878
Cash with Other Financial Agents 50,408
Petty Cash Funds 128 49
Cash on Hand 281 27

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents S 358,167 S 57,717 S 7,120 S 584,030 S 129,990
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Note 4 Cash and Cash Equivalents, Securities Lending and Investments (Continued)

Summary of Cash and Cash Equivalents, Securities Lending and Investments (Continued)

| Summary of Investments

Fire and Fire and Police
Police Retiree Health CPS
City Pension Fund Care Fund Energy SAWS
U.S. Treasuries, Government Agencies,
Money Market Mutual Funds, and
Government Investment Pool S 1,742,836 S 121,336 S 7,057 S 1,446,924 S 1,016,679
Repurchase Agreements 1,177
Corporate Bonds 323,335 138,496
Foreign Bonds 247,994 12,579
Common Stock 683,200 9,128 144,473
Mutual Funds 79,538
Real Estate 251,363 28,490 48,802
Preferred Stock 850 714
Hedge Funds 480,868 457
International Equities - Common Stock 438,886
Alternative Investment 465,386 240,152
Total Investments 1,744,863 3,012,368 364,822 1,791,988 1,016,679
Less: Investments with Original Maturities
of Less than Ninety Days included in
Cash and Cash Equivalents (151,986) (57,480) (7,057) (580,583) (120,878)
Total $ 1,592,877 $ 2,954,888 $ 357,765 $ 1,211,405 $ 895,801

City monies are deposited in demand accounts at the City’s depository. The City utilizes a pooled cash and
investment strategy with each fund’s cash balance and pro rata shares of highly liquid investments, including U.S.
Treasury securities, U.S. government agency securities, and repurchase agreements with original maturities of 90
days or less, summarized by fund type and included in the combined Statement of Net Position as cash and cash
equivalents. Overdrafts, which result from a fund overdrawing its share of pooled cash, are reported as interfund
payables by the overdrawn fund and as interfund receivables of either the General Fund or another fund with a
similar purpose.

The City’s investment portfolio is managed in accordance with the Texas Public Funds Investment Act, as amended,
and its own Investment Policy. Authorized investments include demand accounts, certificates of deposit,
obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. government agencies, commercial paper, repurchase agreements, money
market mutual funds and government investment pools. The City maintains in its investment portfolio U.S.
Treasury securities and U.S. government agency securities with original maturities greater than 90 days. Each
fund’s pro rata share of these investments with original maturities greater than 90 days is combined with similar
nonpooled securities (i.e., securities purchased and held for specific funds), including U.S. Treasury securities and
U.S. government agency securities, and are reported as investments in the combined Statement of Net Position, as
of September 30, 2019.

Year-Ended September 30, 2019 -63- Amounts are expressed in thousands
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Note 4 Cash and Cash Equivalents, Securities Lending and Investments (Continued)

Primary Government (City)

With regard to money market investments and government investment pools that have a remaining maturity of
one year or less at the time of purchase, the City’s policy is to report these investments at amortized cost.
Amortized cost approximates fair value for these investments. The decrease in fair value for investments of the
City with a remaining maturity of greater than one year at the time of purchase was $2,022 for the year-ended
September 30, 2019.

GASB Statement No. 79, Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants, applies to all state and local
governments that participate in external investment pools. The City participates in two such pools: TexPool and
TexPool Prime. The City’s investments managed through TexPool are recorded at amortized cost in accordance
with GASB Statement No. 79. These investments consist exclusively of United States government securities, its
agencies or instrumentalities, repurchase agreements collateralized by United States government securities, its
agencies or instrumentalities, AAA-rated, no-load money market mutual funds, certificates of deposit guaranteed
or insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Company or the National Credit Union Share Insurance Fund,
commercial paper rated at least A-1 or P-1 by (i) two Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organizations
(NRSROs) or (ii) one NRSRO and fully secured by an irrevocable letter of credit by a national or state bank, and
securities lending programs. The Comptroller of Public Accounts is the sole officer, director, and shareholder of the
Texas Treasury Safekeeping Trust Company (the Trust Company), which is authorized to operate TexPool.
Federated Investors, Inc. manages the assets under an agreement with the Comptroller, acting on behalf of the
Trust Company. Additional information regarding TexPool and TexPool Prime may be found at
http://www.texpool.com/TexPool/home.do.

TexPool and TexPool Prime do not have any limitations or restrictions on participants’ withdrawals that would
have to be stated in the notes to the financial statements. All TexPool securities are reported within the highest
category of credit ratings and are denominated in U.S. dollars. Per GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and
Investment Risk Exposure, TexPool is not exposed to custodial credit risk. Additionally, TexPool utilizes shadow
pricing, which is consistently within 0.5% of amortized cost value per unit.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 40, the following table and narrative addresses the interest rate risk
exposure by inves